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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present to shareholders the
annual results of Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2012.

| am taking this opportunity to express our gratitude to the Group’s staff for their

contributions enabling the Group to work through a tough year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31 March 2012,
turnover was reported as HK$1,408.6
million (2011: HK$1,781.0 million),
representing a decrease of 21% when
compared with last financial year. Gross
profit decreased by 15% to HK$130.6
million (2011: HK$154.4 million).

o The earnings before interest, tax,

depreciation and amortization

=FRnahAtEST(Z FEE T B FKEE R T (EBITDA) were HK$35.9 million
T & CTEEEN+ The Group distribute IC and components of major brands (2011: HK$34.4 million),
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

representing an increase of HK$1.5
million when compared to the last

corresponding period.

. The operating profit (EBIT) of the Group was HK$22.0 million (2011:
HK$19.8 million), representing an increase of HK$2.2 million when

compared to the last corresponding period.

° After the non-recurring provisions for inventories of HK$1.5 million, profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year was HK$8.8
million (2011: HK$8.1 million) which represents an increase of HK$0.7

million when compared to the last corresponding period.

o Basic earnings per share was HK2.83 cents (2011: HK2.70 cents).

The Board of Directors has not recommended the payment of a final dividend.

During the year, the Group did not declare any interim dividend.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 March 2012, the Group’s net current assets amounted to HK$179.4 million
(2011: HK$129.9 million) and the shareholders’ funds were HK$378.5 million
(2011: HK$371.0 million).

The current liabilities were HK$429.9 million (2011: HK$494.7 million)
representing a decreased of 13% by HK$64.8 million. The current ratio for the
year increased to 1.42 (2011: 1.26).

With the increase in turnover of new business in the EMS manufacturing segment
in which considerable finished products will be shipped after the reported year,
HK$227.6

million) at the year end. Average stock turnover was approximately 70 days

inventory level was increased by 15% to HK$262.0 million (2011:

(2011: 52 days). The trade receivable (excluding notes receivable) decreased by
HK$34.1 million to HK$184.9 million (2011: HK$219.0 million).

The year ended cash and bank balances were HK$105.4 million (2011:
HK$104.4 million).

Total available banking facilities of the Group were approximately HK$389.8
million (2011: HK$435.8 million), of which HK$78.7 million was available for use
(2011: HK$89.5 million). Finance lease obligations outstanding as of 31 March
2012 amounted to HK$2.4 million (2011: HK$ 1.1 million). At 31 March 2012, the
Company committed corporate guarantees of HK$484.0 million (2011: HK$569.0
million) in favor of banks for granting banking facilities to certain subsidiaries. The
gearing ratio which was defined as total borrowings after netting off cash and
cash equivalents, to shareholders’ funds, excluding minority interests, was 0.42
(2011: 0.47).

The Group’s assets were mostly financed by shareholders’ funds, trade payables
Bank

borrowings comprised trade financing repayable within one year and term loans

and bank borrowings. Trade payables were repayable within one year.

repayable in installments of 3 to 6 years based on original contractual maturity.
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The borrowings were mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and US
dollars to prevent currency risk. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars, Canadian dollars and Renminbi.
The Group matched the payment and receipts of foreign currency arising from
routine purchases and sales to control and minimize the financial cost and
exchange risk. Most of the Group’s borrowings were interest bearing at floating
rates which were based on the Hong Kong HIBOR rate or London LIBOR rate.
The Group did not engage in any speculative derivatives or structured products

transaction.

The Group did not repurchase any ordinary shares in the open market during the

year.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

The Group is engaged in the following major businesses:

— Electronic Components Distribution;

- EMS (Contract Electronic Manufacturing Services);

— Consumer Electronics and Electronic Components & Parts

Manufacturing; and
— Personal Computer Products Distribution.
Electronic Components Distribution
Electronic components distribution constitutes the core business of the Group

accounting for 60% (2011:
Other than the global dropping of economic activities, the low incentive market

63%) of the Group’s turnover in the reported year.

sentiment leads to keen price competition. The Group had prudent control in
credit risk and turned down a substantial portion of business of un-reasonable
profit margins and high risk sales and thus, turnover of distribution segment
was HK$840.4 million (2011: HK$1,117.0 million) representing a decrease of
25% when compared to the last financial year. Gross profit was HK$73.0 million
HK$89.5
million). Net profit of this segment was HK$16.1 million representing a decrease

of 59% when compared with last year (2011: HK$39.2 million).

representing a decrease of 18% when compared to last year (2011:
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Business in this segment is mainly to act as authorized distributor of various
renowned brand names including the Group’s own manufactured electronic
components. Major customers are manufacturers in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Products of this segment includes diodes, transistors, integrated circuits (IC),
power modules, MCU, MCP, CPU, memory chips and display modules, etc.
Applications of these components are mobile phones, electronic toys, power
supplies, radios, CD players, DVD players, TV, LED illuminations, handheld

electronic devices, amplifiers and automobiles.

The Group has about 30 years of experience in the distribution segment.
In addition to its solid base in Hong Kong, the Group is one of the major
distributors pioneer to penetrate in the PRC market for more than 20 years.
The Group has built up a strong sales network and good logistic foundation in
major PRC cities by joining management between Hong Kong and local Chinese
elites. The performance of Shenzhen, Shanghai and Beijing sales offices are
outstanding among competitors. In order to explore new business opportunities,
the Group has further strengthened the engineering capability in providing total
solutions to customers and will continue bringing in new principal suppliers to

sustain future growths.

The Group has maintained an array of authorized distributorships with renowned
suppliers such as Toshiba, Panasonic, On Semiconductor, Arnold Magnetics,
Lite-on, CET, HTC, Rohm, Abilis, COS, Diodes, Everlight and AEM.

Beijing, Shanghai and Shenzhen sales divisions continue to play an important
role in this segment. The Group has also established sales office in Chengdu and

Xiamen.

EMS (Contract Electronic Manufacturing Service)

In the reported period, the Group was still gearing in low margin high labor
intensive EMS products. In order to reduce loss due to the rapid increase of
labor cost, the Group has eliminated a large portion of products of this nature.

Although turnover decreased in this segment, net profit increased substantially.
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Turnover of this segment decreased to HK$164.4 million (2011: HK$201.8
million), representing a decrease of 19% when compared to last year. The gross
profit of this segment increased by 5% to HK$20.9 million (2011: HK$19.9
million). Net profit of this segment was HK$4.8 million representing an increase
of 100% when compared to last year (2011: HK$2.4 million).

The Group is engaged in the production of telecommunication modules in mobile
phone base stations, radar parts, and electronic modules in automobiles as well
as PCB assembly, casing and testing for industrial purpose products. The EMS
plant is equipped with high speed SMT production lines with nitrogen filled reflow
furnaces, precise solder paste screen printer, etc. Process reliability can be
ensured by the in-house RoHS Scanning Systems and X-Ray Inspection Machine

and antistatic clear room.

In the reported year, the Group attained remarkable success in gaining customer
recognition in new products. The Group collaborated with an American high-tech
company who owns the patented IP of intelligent solar power system of green
energy to collect and distribute solar power in commercial and industrial sectors.
These projects are widely accepted by American and Europe environmentally
committed enterprises. The Group has received confirmed purchase orders from
customers. The order will be shipped after the reported period and will generate

an above average profit margin in the coming fiscal year.

Consumer Electronics and Electronic Components and
Parts Manufacturing

In this reported year, due to the increase of minimum wages, labor shortage and
the appreciation of RMB, overheads of manufacturing segment kept increasing.
On the other hand, before the relocation of the factory facilities from Donguang
to Heyuan last December, the Group paid double management expenses in this
period. Due to the prolonged contraction of the American and European markets
with the keen competition from small local Chinese manufacturers, this segment
suffered considerable losses. In the coming year, the Group will realign the
product mix and the manufacturing segment and will discontinue the low-margin

and low business entry barrier products to eliminate the continuous loss.

Turnover of this segment was HK$128.9 million (2011: HK$174.1 million)
representing a decrease of 26%. Gross profit decreased to HK$6.5 million (2011:
HK$16.6 million). Net loss of this segment was HK$40.0 million representing
a substantial increase of loss of 141% when compared to last year (2011:
HK$16.6 million).
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Due to the substantial increase in minimum wages and the enforcement of labor
law in China, together with the inflation of local services, the production costs
for manufacturers have increased over the years. At the same time, the Group
faced tough price competition from informal small-sized factories that have
sprung up over the years. These informal factories operate in a hit and run style
aiming at small, low quality and low margin orders of low entry barrier products.
After years of efforts, this segment still burdens the Group by its substantial
losses. Although the Group has remarkable success in the production of the
Park Camera System, the negative result of other products has diminished this

positive impact.

To prevent further risk in running a marginal profitable business, the Group
is gradually walking away from entry level consumer electronics. Instead, the
Group will spear head to quality products which require higher technology such
as Bluetooth audio, wireless audio, iPhone hi-fi/dockings, two-way-radios,
citizen band radio and cordless Dect phone products as well as other digital

applications.

The tough price competition and high risk lead to a substantial drop of business
magnitude in this segment. The Group is planning to outsource all the production
of this segment to subcontractors and re-strategize as a marketing arm of the
Group. And the Group expects this segment can have a break-even contribution
to the Group.

In the sub-segment of electronic components and parts manufacturing, the
Group manufacture wire and harnesses and diodes (Zener Diodes, Rectifier
Diodes, Switching Diodes, Scotty Diodes and Diacs). The Group has also been
acting as the appointed OEM manufacturer of SGS-Thompson Semiconductors
for more than 10 years. In the reported year, the slow global economic
environment resulted in low demand in this segment. Together with high labor

cost, it drags this segment of business into negative contribution.

Personal Computer Products Distribution

The Group has started the distribution of personal computer systems and parts
in North America since 1989. Products in this segment include motherboards,
display cards, hard disk drives, optical storage devices, computer cases, power
supplies, software, memories, desk-top computers, notebook computers, and

computer accessories. Business in this segment is steady.
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Even in the global adverse business environment, business in this segment
is steady with a slight increase of net profit. Turnover of this segment was
HK$274.9 million (2011: HK$288.1 million) which represented a slight decrease
of 5% in the reported year. Gross profit increased by 6% to HK$30.2 million
(2011: HK$28.4 million). Net profit of this segment was HK$5.8 million
representing an increase of 5% when compared to last year (2011: HK$5.5
million).The Group continues to diversify the personal computer distribution
business to further penetrate into mass merchants such as Canadian Tires and
Walmart in smart phone and personal computer accessories. Profit margin of

this new business keeps growing.

FUTURE PROSPECT

Although the business of segment of distribution of electronic components is
currently slow because of the decreased global demand, the outlook of this
segment is healthy with ample opportunities to grow from the second half of the
coming fiscal year. There is a request from principal suppliers such as Toshiba
and ON Semiconductor to consolidate the scattered Hong Kong and China
distributorship to just a few chosen companies as “Super Distributor”. The
Group was invited to be the one of the few in the chosen list. Business for the
chosen distributors will gain absolute privilege to become oligopoly distributor
and targeted to have a triple grow of business in the following three years. At
this stage, the Group is actively negotiating for merger or joint venture with
some competitors to furnish this segment to become a stronger and more solid

distributor to cater for this change.

In EMS segment, the intelligent solar power system in which the Group has
invested for two years now come to the final stage of installation at the end
customer’s site and the result of years of efforts will be contributed in the
coming fiscal year. The Group has already received confirmed orders and steady
projections with sizable business volume that will bring in fruitful result in the

coming two years.

In some low cost assembling EMS products which have been manufactured by
the Group for more than 10 years, some customers have already accepted two
digits percentages of price increase. The Group is confident that in the coming
fiscal year, there is still room for further price adjustment. The Group will further

walk away from those products that do not justify the cost increase.

Business in the Canada personal computer business is steady. With the increase

of business from mega store, this segment will maintain steady growth.
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In the segment of consumer electronics and telecommunication such as Dect
phone and two-way-radios, the Group will position itself as a marketing house
of the Group’s product and will subcontract the manufacturing role to surround
subcontractors. The Group believes that this change can help the Group to keep
away from the non-profitable OEM and assembling business. The given up of
this assembling segment will have a very positive contribution to the Group by

eliminating the loss in this segment.

The management believes that in the coming fiscal year, the Group will have a
year of steady growth in the distribution segment with further enhancement in the
high technological, high quality and higher price products in the manufacturing

segment.

EMPLOYEES

At 31 March 2012, the Group employed a total of approximately 2,300
employees (31 March 2011:
and PRC.

2,800 employees) located in Hong Kong, Canada

The Group’s remuneration policy is in line with the prevailing market practices
and is determined on the basis of performance and experience of the individual.
Sales personnel are remunerated by salaries and incentives in accordance
with the achievement of their sales target. General staff are offered year-end
discretionary bonuses, which are based on the divisional performance and
individual appraisals. The Group also provides a Mandatory Provident Fund or

ORSO scheme and medical benefits to all Hong Kong employees.

The Group is committed to devoting more resources in providing internal and
external training to the employees. In addition to sending staff to participate in
seminars and lectures, the Group continues recommending that qualified staff
take part in professional courses such as the ISO9000, TS16949 and Six-Sigma
Quality Systems. The training programs not only enhance employees’ career
development and professional knowledge, but also contribute to upgrading the

management system of the Group.

9 aRNEmEERAER QA
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VB E Financial Summary

FFEMBEHME FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

UTAREERETEAEEZAHESE BENAE - The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and liabilities of

the Group for the last five years.

=F-—= —F— e —TTh N
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
FET FAET FHET FHT FEIT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
=20 Turnover 1,408,617 1,781,010 1,628,377 1,542,134 1,911,025
L Profit/(loss) attributable to
R ER PE(EEF,(E518)
shareholders 8,786 8,194 (31,630) 7,115 6,891
BESLE Total assets 817,513 868,325 881,902 745,318 810,902
BEEEE Total liabilities 439,049 497,306 520,902 360,747 422,258
BEFE Net assets 378,464 371,019 361,000 384,571 388,644
A& A Share capital 31,539 30,394 30,394 30,364 30,423
B& 15 = (B Share premium and
\ 346,976 340,651 330,252 353,732 357,340
RE other reserves
PR R RS Shareholders’ equity 378,515 371,045 360,646 384,096 387,763
JEE I M R Non-controlling interests (51) (26) 354 475 881
B Total equity 378,464 371,019 361,000 384,571 388,644

EMBEEERABR QA 10
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MM E Financial Summary

AFEMBEBRE FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (continued)

EEFE
Net Assets
B&EET

HK$ million

EE S
Turnover
B&EET
HKS$ million

11 EfmEERERAQA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



VB E Financial Summary

—E-CHERIEXRBED 2EXE
TURNOVER BY PRINCIPAL BUSINESS SEGMENT FOR 2012

A BB B 45 85
Personal computer
products distribution
(19%)

B TS
Electronic components
distribution (60%)

BEFEEANEERS
Contract electronic
manufacturing services (12%)
BEFHBERLEE

Consumer electronics products
manufacturing (4%)

EF LR R AE
Electronic components & parts
manufacturing (5%)

—E-CHERMERES CEXR
TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT FOR 2012

EHAth TBIMEIR
Other Asian countries
(1%)

B
Europe (11%)

HE
Hong Kong (31%)

dEZEM
North America
(23%)
R
RPN Turnover
Mainland China (34%)
—E—— e
2012 2011
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ES Rt G Electronic components distribution 840,412 1,117,003
BETFEXEENEERY Contract electronic manufacturing services 164,418 201,777
BT REMFEE Electronic components & parts manufacturing 67,219 106,956
EFHBEMAEE Consumer electronics products manufacturing 61,698 67,156
ETHEEMMETILEM  Consumer electronics and electronic components
KB & parts manufacturing 128,917 174,112
1A o B A 8 Personal computer products distribution 274,870 288,118
1,408,617 1,781,010

BNEEZERAERDA 12
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to maintain
good corporate governance standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance the shareholders’

value.

The Company has adopted the principles and complied with all the applicable
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year
ended 31 March 2012, save for the deviations discussed below. The Board
will continuously review and improve the corporate governance practices and
standards of the Company to ensure that business activities and decision making

processes are regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions (the “Model
Code”).

directors of the Company have confirmed that they have fully complied with the

Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, the

required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention paid
to the growth and financial performance of the Group. The principal functions of
the Board are to:

(1) establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

2) determine the broad policies, strategic plans and performance objectives

of the Group;

(3) monitor management performance;

(4) approve financial plans and annual budgets, major funding proposals,

key funding and investment proposals;

13 aRNEmEERAER QA
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

5) oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls,

risk management, financial reporting and compliance; and
(6) assume responsibility for corporate governance.

The Board comprises four executive directors and three independent non-

executive directors.

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year to approve annual
and interim results, and to review the business operation and the internal control
system of the Group. Apart from these regular meetings, Board meetings are

also held to approve major or special issues.

Nine Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March 2012.

Members of the Board, number of Board meetings held and the attendance of

each member during the year are set out as follows:

HESERY EES2R LK
Number of meetings attended/

Members of the Board Number of Board meetings held

Executive directors

Mr. LAU Tak Wan (President) 9/9
Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky (Vice-president) 9/9
Mr. WAN Chor Fai 9/9
Mr. MAK Hon Kai, Stanly 9/9

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 9/9
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 9/9
Dr. LIU Ngai Wing 9/9
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received from each independent non-executive directors an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive directors are

independent.

Given the nature and business objectives of the Company, the Board has a
balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business
of the Company. List of directors and their biographical details are set out on

pages 23 to 25.
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and chief executive

officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. LAU Tak Wan is the Chairman of the Board and the president of the
Company. In the opinion of the Board, the role of the president and the chief
executive officer is the same. The Board considers that the present structure
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allows for efficient
and effective business planning and execution. Hence, the Board believes that it
is in the best interest of the shareholders of the Company that Mr. LAU Tak Wan
will continue to assume the roles of the Chairman of the Board and the president
of the Company. However, the Company will review the current structure as and

when it becomes appropriate in future.
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the Code provision A.4.1, the non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election and under the Code provision A.4.2,
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject

to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Currently, the three independent non-executive directors are not appointed for
a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the
bye-laws of the Company, and their appointment will be reviewed when they are

due for re-election.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on, among other things, the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of all directors and senior management of the Company and is
delegated by the Board with the responsibility to determine on behalf of the
Board the specific remuneration packages for all Executive directors and senior

management of the Company.

HEEERE
ZESEERY
No. of Meeting Attended/

Members of Remuneration Committee: No. of Meeting

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. LIU Ngai Wing (Chairman) 11
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 11

Executive director
Mr. LAU Tak Wan 1/1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to:

(1) review the structure, size and composition of the Board (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) on a regular basis and make

recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(2) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorships;

(3) assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(4) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in particular the chairman and the president (chief executive);

and
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continueq)

(5) where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive Director at the general meeting, the
Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant
general meeting why they believe the individual should be elected and

the reasons why they consider the individual to be independent.

HEEERE

ZEEEERY

No. of Meeting Attended/

Members of Nomination Committee: No. of Meeting
Executive director

Mr. LAU Tak Wan (Chairman) 11

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 11
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 11

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms of reference.
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group and providing advice
and recommendations to the Board.

Audit Committee is also authorised to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant

experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the year ended 31 March 2012.

17 aRNEmEERAER QA
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

Members of the Audit Committee, number of Audit Committee meetings held

and the attendance of each member during the year are set out as follows:

Members of the Audit Committee

HEERRE
EREEEERRE
Number of meetings
attended/Number of
Audit Committee

meetings held

Members of Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 2/2
Dr. LIU Ngai Wing 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed the following duties:

1

reviewed the annual financial statements with the auditor and reviewed
the unaudited interim financial statements, with recommendations to the

Board for approval;

reviewed the changes in accounting standards and policies as well as

assessment of potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements;

reviewed the Group’s internal control system and discussed the relevant
issues including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk

management functions;

reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory

requirements;

considered and recommended the appointment, re-appointment and

approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor;

discussed with external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and

reporting obligations; and

reviewed and monitored external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standards.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements
are in accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board also ensure the timely publication of the

financial statements of the Group.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Company,
provided the following services to the Group and their respective fees charged

are set out as follows:

W B 2 & A

Type of services Fees charged
FET

HK$’000

Audit services for the Group 2,446
Taxation services 118
Total 2,564

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods in
accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements. In preparing the financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September 2011 and for the year ended
31 March 2012, the directors have adopted appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently. The financial statements for the reporting year have

been prepared on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on

pages 34 to 35 in the annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and is
committed to managing business risks and maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Group’s assets. The effectiveness of the internal control system was also

discussed on a semi-annual basis with the Audit Committee.

The Group’s internal control system encompasses its policies, processes, tasks,

and other aspects of the Group that taken together:

(1) to facilitate its effective and efficient operation by allowing it to respond
appropriately to significant business, operational, financial, compliance
and other risks with a view of achieving business objectives. This
includes the safeguarding of assets from inappropriate use or from loss

and fraud and ensuring that liabilities are identified and managed;

(2) to help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal or external reporting;

and

(3) to help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations, and

also with internal policies with respect to the conduct of business.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance of no material mis-statement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s

objectives.



it
i3S
%H_
Iff
i

Report of the Directors

EREREERBE T F A=t ALFER
EEBREEEIMBRRLE -

FTEXK

RARAE—HREERAR  ENBAR TSR ELH
%%m?#'%%ﬁifﬁiF%%'%%%Eé%&
TR tEEEEMCEBEAEKER -

REBRAERE 2 WA KL
IR FS SRR MIFES -

BN E MK 23 S

EENRDIK

AEBRAFEE ZEREHIINE I A2 A ERA

EFETRAER " F-—FZA=+—BLEEZE
HIRS - M- F——F= A=+ BULEEHILRER
R L. -

o) NG

RIZE-—"F=A=+—H ARFRZEZEWNBEL
HE B BRI 21 -

M BRERRE

A&

REE Y - HES RRIE 2 BB IE R BTN 75 3R M
718 °

N

RAEER - AR Z AR BT 5 B 75 # R MY
#32°

AR EE

MAFEER » KRR BBIERE 27 ABRERF I 15 R
fi

FMIFE33 ©

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the electronic components distribution, contract electronic
manufacturing services, consumer electronics and electronic components and

parts manufacturing and distribution of personal computer products.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to operating profit by

reportable segments for the year is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 36.

The Board of Directors did not recommend payment of final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2012. No interim dividend was declared or paid for
the year ended 31 March 2012.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2012 are set out

in note 21 to the financial statements.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in note 18 to the financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 32 to the financial

statements.
WARRANTS

Details of warrants of the Company are set out in note 33 to the financial

statements.
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RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from reserves during
the year are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2012, the reserves of the Company available for distribution
amounted to HK$106,812,000 (2011: HK$90,325,000), including contributed
surplus of HK$72,309,000 (2011: HK$72,309,000).

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$211,500 (2011:
during the year.

HK$260,000)

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws and
there was no restriction against such right under the laws in Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five years until 31 March 2012 is set out on pages 10 to 11.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2012, sales to the five largest customers of the
Group in total accounted for approximately 16% of the Group’s total turnover,
with the largest customer accounted for about 6%. The five largest suppliers
of the Group together in total accounted for approximately 58% by value of the
Group’s total purchases during the year, with the largest supplier accounted for
about 38%.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive directors

Mr. LAU Tak Wan (President)

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky (Vice-president)
Mr. WAN Chor Fai

Mr. MAK Hon Kai, Stanly

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing

Mr. MAK Hon Kai, Stanly and Barry John BUTTIFANT retire by rotation in
accordance with clause 99 of the Company’s bye-laws and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The terms of office of the directors, including the independent non-executive
directors, are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election at
the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s bye-

laws.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. LAU Tak Wan, aged 62, is the founder and the President of the Group. Mr.
Lau graduated from Hong Kong Baptist College (now known as Hong Kong
Baptist University) in Sociology and has more than 30 years’ management
and production experience in the electronics industry. Prior to founding the
Group, Mr. Lau had over 6 years’ experience in running his own business in
the electronics industry. He is responsible for the overall corporate planning,

strategic development and marketing of the Group.

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky, aged 55, LAU Tak Wan.

Ms. Chan is the Vice-president of the Group. Also she is the Director of

is the spouse of Mr.

Administration and Finance responsible for administration, human resources and
finance of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in 1998, Ms. Chan has over 20
years of experience in accounting and financial management and at the same

time running her own business for more than 10 years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive directors (continued)

Mr. WAN Chor Fai, aged 54, is the CEO (Manufacturing) of the Group. Mr.
Wan graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in Production and Industrial Engineering and is
responsible for the business development and manufacturing management of the
Group. He has more than 20 years’ experience in manufacturing and marketing.
Prior to joining the Group in 1987, he worked for an international conglomerate
and was in charge of the electronics division.

Mr. MAK Hon Kai, Stanly, aged 50, is the CEO (Distribution) of the Group
responsible for the Group’s overall marketing strategy and the distribution of
electronic components. Mr. Mak joined the Group in 1988. He has more than 20
years’ experience in the sales and marketing of electronic components.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Barry John Buttifant, aged 67, is an independent non-executive Director
appointed by the Group in 1994. In April 2011, Mr. Buttifant rejoined Hsin Chong
Construction Group (“HCCG”) as an executive director. From July 2010 to April
2011, Mr. Buttifant was a Chief Executive Officer of the IDT International Limited.
From October 2009 to March 2010, Mr. Buttifant was a director — corporate
finance of Mission Hills Group (“MHG”) and prior to this appointment, he was
the consultant to the Group since December 2008. Prior to joining MHG, Mr.
Buttifant served as a principal of KLC Kennic Lui & Company, a professional
accounting firm, and managing director of KLC Transactions Limited. Prior to
joining KLC, Mr. Buttifant was the executive director — finance of MHG from
February 2008 till November 2008. From December 2004 to December 2007,
Mr. Buttifant was the managing director of Hsin Chong International Holdings
Limited, a controlling shareholder of HCCG (which was acquired by MHG in
November 2007) and Synergis Holdings Ltd (“Synergis”) (which was acquired
by HCCG in September 2008). Mr. Buttifant was also an alternate director
to both public companies. Mr. Buttifant was an operating partner of Baring
Private Equity Asia Limited. He was also the managing director of Wo Kee Hong
(Holdings) Limited (“Wo Kee Hong”) from 2001 to 2002 and was the Advisor
to the board of directors of Wo Kee Hong from November 2002 to April 2004.
Prior to joining Wo Kee Hong, he was the managing director of IDT International
Limited for over eight years and had worked for Polly Peck Group and Sime
Darby Hong Kong Limited for more than 11 years in the capacity of finance
director and managing director. He has over 33 years of experience in corporate
and financial management in HK. Currently Mr. Buttifant is an independent
non-executive director of Giordano International Limited and a non-executive
director of Synergis, all of which are publicly listed companies in Hong Kong.
Mr. Buttifant also serves as a non-executive director of Global-Tech Advanced
Innovations Inc. (formerly known as Global-Tech Appliances, Inc.), a NASDAQ
company and China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Limited, a NYSE listed public
company. Mr. Buttifant is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants; the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants;
the Chartered Management Institute; the Hong Kong Management Association
and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors (continued)

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in September 2004. Dr. Liu holds a PhD Degree in
Hotel and Tourism Management from the Hotel and Tourism Management
School of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2008, a Master of Arts Degree
in China Studies from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
2011, a Master of Science degree in Global Business from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2002, a Master of Science Degree in Hotel and Tourism
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001 and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the Open University of Hong Kong in
1999. He is also an Associate Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
From 10 September 2010, Dr. Liu is an independent non-executive director of
Kosmopolito Hotels International Limited, which is public listed company in Hong
Kong. Dr. Liu was previously an executive director of eSun Holdings Limited and
an independent non-executive director of New Smart Energy Group Limited and
3D-Gold Jewellery Holdings Limited. The above-mentioned companies are listed

or were previously listed in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan, aged 59, was awarded Bachelor of Laws Degree (LLB) by
University of London in 1988 and Post-graduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) by
University of Hong Kong in 1991. Mr Choi is one of the Principals of Messrs.
Choi & Associates. Mr. Choi was admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong in 1993 and a Solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales
in 1994,
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company and these service contracts will continue thereafter until terminated by

either party for not less than three or six months’ prior written notice.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which cannot be
terminated by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the directors’ service contracts noted above and the connected
transactions noted as below, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.



it
i3S
%H_
Iff
i

Report of the Directors

EERBSTBRAERAQAHEM
BBRBEEE 2 RG - HEBEROREE
HEERARE

BIEEXVER) 2 Bedn - BRAR & Bk & P A IRIRE 5
FRHEGPIEXVEET k8D MAMEG AR RAE KR
P2 s ROR A (BRERIERE SR LB GD 2 ZEHX
BEEKERBEE 2RERRR)  REALBRIREE
7 R K R BI % 352 (RFTARE AN A R 2 Bacfit
BERKR - IRELETRANZ LW AR ERETES
RSHFEETRRME AR R R RFT2 fEm Rk R W
T

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

At 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required,
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
kept by the Company, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules, to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a) RAATIEREEOIOEBTZRINERE (a) Long position in the Company’s shares of HK$0.10 each
BRILER TEIR
Pt B AR 6 2 B B
Number of issued ordinary shares/
underlying shares attached to derivatives
ERTEER
Ordinary shares in issue
BARER FEER HitiiE s my

EENE Personal Mt Corporate = Other Total BAtk
Name of directors interests Notes interests Notes interests interests Percentage
AEEEE

Mr. LAU Tak Wan 6,557,141 1 168,077,229 283 1,142,854 175,777,224 55.73%
R+

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky 4,042,854 1 168,077,229 283 3,657,141 175,777,224 55.73%
FRBEE

Mr. WAN Chor Fai 50,000 — — 50,000 0.016%
ERLEE

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 100,000 — — 100,000 0.032%

27 aRNEmEERAER QA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Ht
T8>
%H,
Dff
i

Report of the Directors

BEERBRESTHRAERAQAHEM
EBRBLIE 2B - HBERO R EE
BeERRKB®)

(a) RAEAQTESREEOI0BTZRIDEFRA(E)

Mt -

1. BrERRLT (Bl EZRB)BEEAR
A AR 2,900,000 f% ©

2. China Capital Holdings Investment Ltd
([China Capital]) B = # B & 2 7 IR 7
107,158,833 fi% ° China CapitalZ & % 2Z
ANTEBETRAHIEEEEG  HRTEDZ
B BTRANER L TR ©

3. Leading Trade Ltd ([ Leading Trade|) & #= #

BARRQF AN 60,918,396 % © Leading Trade
BAZETESRITRAHACEHES - 8T
BAZATEBEITRAHMRLZTES -

aNEEERAERAA 28
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

(a) Long position in the Company’s shares of HK$0.10 each (continued)

Notes:

1. 2,900,000 shares in the Company were jointly held by Mr. Lau and Ms.
Chan (the spouse of Mr. Lau).

2. 107,158,833 shares in the Company were beneficially owned by China
Capital Holdings Investment Ltd (“China Capital”). The issued share capital
of China Capital is 60% owned by Mr. Lau, and 40% owned by Ms. Chan.

3. 60,918,396 shares in the Company were beneficially owned by Leading
Trade Ltd (“Leading Trade”). The issued share capital of Leading Trade is
50% owned by Mr. Lau and 50% owned by Ms. Chan.
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EFTERBERAF

Cosmos Wires and Connectors Manufacturing Limited

Westpac Digital Limited

FEREFEARANTF
Vastpoint Industrial Limited

ANEERERAA
Daiwa Associate (H.K.) Limited

BN - BIEERREZ DRI BRBERTIRE
IXRBRARZELRER TR 140,000 &
%.10,000 f% -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

(b) Shares of associated corporations of the company

Dominion International Limited, which is 50% owned by Mr. Lau, and
50% owned by Ms. Chan:

FEZERERELZRDEBE
Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

50,000

455,000

1,500,000

In addition, each of Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan beneficially owns 140,000 and
10,000 non-voting deferred shares respectively in Cosmotec Precision

Industrial Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of the Directors, chief
executives of the Company or their associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required, pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register kept by the Company, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed

during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A subsidiary of the Group, Daiwa Distribution (Ontario) Inc., had entered into a
rental agreement in respect of office space in Canada on 1 June 2006 with a
company jointly owned by Mr. Lau Tak Wan and Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky for
the period from 1 June 2011 to 31 May 2014. Monthly rental paid for the office
premises is CAD14,266.33 (approximately HK$112,000).

The above constituted a connected transaction under the Listing Rules. The
Directors are of the opinion that the above transaction was entered into on
normal commercial terms and on an arm'’s length basis; was fair and reasonable

so far as the shareholders of the Company, taken as a whole, are concerned.

The above connected transaction constituted an exempted connected

transaction under the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had entered
into any connected transactions discloseable by the Company under the Listing

Rules during the year.
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Leading Trade Limited
China Capital Holdings Investment Limited
RIEERE

Mr. Ng Hung Sang
REBZ T (RBELEZERE)

Ms. Ng Lai King, Pamela (spouse of Mr. Ng Hung Sang)

1. Leading Trade Limited 2 50% # &5 /& 2115 18 & £ AT
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2. China Capital Holdings Investment Limited Z 60%

HHRBGELENMERRIO%ER BRI RZ T
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2012, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following
parties (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company), had an interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
which are required to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 and Part XV of the SFO, or, who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
member of the Group.

Interests in the shares of the Company

HEBRITRG
BERGHAE BEHEI
BiiE Number of % of the total
Note shares held issued shares
60,918,396 19.32%
2 107,158,833 33.98%
57,028,198 18.08%
57,028,198 18.08%
Notes:
1. Leading Trade Limited is 50% owned by Mr. LAU Tak Wan and 50% owned by
Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky. Accordingly, Leading Trade Limited, Mr. Lau and
Ms. Chan were deemed by SFO to be interested in 60,918,396, 175,777,224 and
175,777,224 shares of the Company.
2. China Capital Holdings Investment Limited is 60% owned by Mr. LAU Tak Wan and

40% owned by Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky. Accordingly, China Capital Holdings
Investment Limited, Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan were deemed by SFO to be interested in
107,158,833, 175,777,224 and 175,777,224 shares of the Company respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
interest representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company and
recorded in the register of Substantial Shareholders maintained under Section
336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2012.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float

throughout the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 20.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive

directors are independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Audit Committee provides an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditor in matters coming within the scope of the
group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of internal audit, internal controls
and risk evaluation. The Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan and Dr. LIU
Ngai Wing. Two meetings were held during the current financial year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2012, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold and redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities during the year ended 31 March 2012.
AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who

retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Tak Wan
President

Hong Kong, 28 June 2012
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TO THE SHAREHOLERS OF DAIWA ASSOCIATE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Daiwa Associate
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 36 to 128, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

efMEmEAERAER QA 34
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Independent Auditor’s Report

BETSRATIEF ARG B G BRRABSEL
WREMNETERRE o & E MR FEORRZEEN R #]
b BREFEENAGFRERMERSHYBHRERT
EERERBREORER - ERTEZERBRE - ZE8EE
BEZARRES HHBHRRAMELEE M AT AR
HEARNAEBES] - AREFHEEWETRRF 0 (B8 ML
RERNBABEGFNAREERER - BT EEFNE
BEEMRASTRENAEERMEL St NEE
1 ARFHE A G IR ERSIHRA X -

HPIEE - RPIESHERS EESARTEE AR
FIREEt B R IR AR -

R
BMRR  ZFEHUBBREREETEMEHRELER
BEEMAFIORER S/ EEER_T—_—F=

A=tT—BAmMEZKIR - &k EKEEEZALFED
FMEMRERE  YERREB(R TR ERTE
R RmEL -

EORUKES BT
BEEAT D

BB —E——F,A=-+NAH

8

:I‘ﬁ'

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2012, and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 June 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

AE T ——F=H=1—HIFFZF

For the year ended 31 March 2012

—E—= == ——
2012 2011
it FET FET
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
ON Revenue 5 1,408,617 1,781,010
SHE KA Cost of sales 8 (1,278,050) (1,626,643)
EF Gross profit 130,567 154,367
E A Other income 6 1,256 894
H s Other gains 7 1,120 5,420
HE (R - P - Net gain on disposals of land use rights,
2SR s e U e and property, plant and equipment 41,941 90
Mz - Hes RRBRIERE Provision for impairment of property, plant and
equipment 18 (10,266) —
SHE RACHFAZ Selling and distribution expenses 8 (23,330) (27,187)
—MRITH R General and administrative expenses 8 (119,273) (113,759)
&R Operating profit 22,015 19,825
& WA Finance income 10 796 73
BhE B AR Finance costs 10 (6,860) (5,239)
R 54 A % Profit before income tax 15,951 14,659
FEHFZ Income tax expense 11 (7,190) (6,570)
AE SRR Profit for the year 8,761 8,089
FEAE A : Attributable to:
RATERFEEA Equity holders of the Company 8,786 8,194
FE4E Il 1 e 2 Non-controlling interests (25) (105)
8,761 8,089
AARERFTEAEMN Earnings per share for profit attributable
FRER to equity holders of the Company during
the year
— EARREE — Basic and diluted 16 HK2.83 cents &1l HK2.70 cents &1l
M43 EZE 128 B 2 Mtk /e IR 2 B EEE 1D - The notes on pages 43 to 128 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
HADNT A AZENREZFBIIRHETE15 - Details of dividends payable to equity holders of the Company are set out in
Note 15.

aNEEERAERAA
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Eftira sk Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AE—FT——F=-A=1—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2012
—_E—— e
2012 2011
FETT FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
el Comprehensive income:
FREFHE Profit for the year 8,761 8,089
Hiira (BE), s - Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
INBIMEZERR Currency translation differences (1,806) 2,123
At EEMmEEATE Fair value (loss)/gain on available-for-sale financial
(EB18) Wz assets (935) 82
EEHMES (BE) WE Other comprehensive (loss)/income for
the year (2,741) 2,205
FEAGRENRE Total comprehensive income for the year 6,020 10,294
wira W (BER)BBR Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:
RAalE=FE A Equity holders of the Company 6,045 10,399
DERR R Non-controlling interests (25) (105)
6,020 10,294

R43EZE 128 A Z M RE GiII15HRR 2 Rk -

statements.

The notes on pages 43 to 128 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

Non-current assets
Goodwill
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights
Other intangible assets
Rental deposits
Deferred income tax assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and notes receivables
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Capital and reserves attributable to equity

holders of the Company
Share capital

Share premium

Reserves

Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Non-current liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Borrowings

Current liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Accruals and other payables
Tax payable

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

LAU Tak Wan
President

As at 31 March 2012

—E—= —F——

2012 2011

Hiaz FBT BT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
17 28,781 29,615
18 149,994 192,624
19 10,574 15,938
20 2,959 4,083
26 621 =
31 514 1,086
23 14,759 387
208,202 243,733

24 261,986 227,607
25 207,509 254,746
26 34,372 37,859
27 105,444 104,380
609,311 624,592

817,513 868,325

32 31,539 30,394
218,476 215,042

34 128,500 125,609
378,515 371,045

(51) (26)

378,464 371,019

31 1,652 1,885
28 7,461 684
9,113 2,569

28 259,184 279,423
29 143,380 186,095
30 25,903 28,113
1,469 1,106

429,936 494,737

439,049 497,306

817,513 868,325

179,375 129,855

387,577 373,588

CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky

Vice-president

The notes on pages 43 to 128 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As at 31 March 2012

—E—=

BR 8 5%
ABEL =l

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves
Total equity
Current liabilities

Accruals and other payables
Tax payable

Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities

LAU Tak Wan
President

statements.

S

2012 2011

Kz FET FHET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
21 44,715 44,715
38(b) 313,468 292,910
358,183 337,625

26 161 134
27 81 439
242 573

358,425 338,198

32 31,539 30,394
218,476 215,042

34 108,214 91,727
358,229 337,163

30 196 1,015
- 20

196 1,085

358,425 338,198

46 (462)

358,229 337,163

CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky

Vice-president

The notes on pages 43 to 128 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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353

RESKAEN
R5HE

R=B-—=F
EFET=

At 1 April 2011

Comprehensive income:
Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive loss:
Currency translation
differences
Fair value losses on available-
for-sale financial assets

Total other comprehensive
loss

Total comprehensive income
Transactions with owners:
Issue of shares upon exercise
of warrants

Dividends

Total transactions with
owners

At 31 March 2012

MNABEE 128 A2 RA IR 2 gk -

aENEEERAR
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

7
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

DEAERFEAER
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
I
Rz

[ B RE Non- RSB
Share Share e #@%  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Total interests equity
FET FET FET FET FET &7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(Biat32) (Hiz#34)

(Note 32) (Note 34)
30,394 215,042 125,609 371,045 (26) 371,019
— — 8,786 8,786 (25) 8,761
— — (1,806) (1,806) — (1,806)
— — (935) (935) — (935)
— — (2,741) (2,741) — (2,741)
— — 6,045 6,045 (25) 6,020
1,145 3,434 — 4,579 — 4,579
— — (3,154) (3,154) — (3,154)
1,145 3,434 (3,154) 1,425 — 1,425
31,539 218,476 128,500 378,515 (61) 378,464

The notes on pages 43 to 128 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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At 1 April 2010

Comprehensive income:
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Currency translation
differences

Fair value gains on available-
for-sale financial assets

Total other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners:
Dividends

At 31 March 2011

RABEE 128 AZ MRS I IBRER 2 A D -

For the year ended 31 March 2012

NEERTEAERN
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FEEHIM
R
&N R RE Non- ERAE
Share Share =4 #%  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Total interests equity
&7 & FET &7 FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Hiat32) (Hiz#34)
(Note 32) (Note 34)
30,394 215,042 115,210 360,646 354 361,000
— — 8,194 8,194 (105) 8,089
- — 2,123 2,123 — 2,123
— — 82 82 — 82
- — 2,205 2,205 — 2,205
— — 10,399 10,399 (105) 10,294
- = - = (275) (275)
30,394 215,042 125,609 371,045 (26) 371,019

The notes on pages 43 to 128 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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EHEEREXR Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE—F——F-H=+—HIFFE For the year ended 31 March 2012
—EF—= —EF——
2012 2011
Hiat FHET FEr
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
RETEZHERE Cash flows from operating activities
KEEBMACRE Cash used in operations 35(a) (26,143) (86,107)
FAFE Interest paid (6,860) (5,239)
W ER A2, Interest received 796 73
B FTE R Income tax paid (6,488) (7,211)
KETEEFMA 2 FRE Net cash used in operating activities (38,695) (98,484)
RETBHZHESRE Cash flows from Investing activities
BEYE  HRRRK Purchases of property, plant and equipment (21,230) (14,163)
BB A E R Purchases of technical know-how - (510)
BEAHLEENEE Purchases of available-for-sale financial
assets (15,307) -
e TR - P HWENRE  Proceeds from disposal of land use rights,
5708 and property, plant and equipment 35(b) 88,688 1,413
BRETDEE(FA)ZFRE Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities 52,151 (13,260)
REITBHZHEERE Cash flows from financing activities
BITRR M FT1S 5RIE Proceeds from issue of shares 4,579 —
FIGIRITE K New bank borrowings 896,886 914,275
BEIRITEN Repayment of bank borrowings (909,552) (864,893)
REREHeSTHZ Payment of capital element of finance
& EBH lease obligations (796) (226)
S B A B DB R Dividend paid to a minority shareholder
&% 2 of a subsidiary - (275)
XARE Dividends paid (3,154) —
MEFH(FA),/ EEZFRE Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities (12,037) 48,881

ReRBESEB/Y2FEM O&) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 1,419 (62,863)

RUA—BZzREREEEED Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 104,380 166,627

INEER SR RASEBY I ZE Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash

equivalents (355) 616

R=ZA=+—HZ2RELBELEZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 27 105,444 104,380

MizER 43 EE 128 B RE ISR 2 BB G - The notes on pages 43 to 128 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 March 2012

GENERAL INFORMATION

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda on 3 February 1994 as an exempted
company under Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 14 April 1994.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the design, development, manufacturing and distribution
of electronic components, contract electronic manufacturing services
and consumer electronics, and the distribution of personal computer
products. The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Canada.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (HK$),
unless otherwise stated. These financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 28 June 2012.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Daiwa Associate
Holdings Limited have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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Bt 1% iR R M 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

—F —#-F-F-H 31 March 2012
2. EEESTHEBRREEw® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 mEIREE(E 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) RIFER 2155 R 2RI (a) Effect of adopting amendments and interpretations

to existing standards

THEAREEFRBAAOER ZE The following amendments and interpretations to existing
FIRBRENER-_ZT——FN standards that are relevant to the Group are mandatory
RA— ARk 2 &8 gt M for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2011:

SREIITIRAEE

o BEEiEl [BEALHE] o HKAS 24 (Revised) “Related Party Transactions;
F 245K (BET)
o FAMKHEEN [ZZ-TFE o HKFRSs (Amendments) “Improvements to HKFRSs 2010”;
(BFTX) RIS
HEER N
#)
o ARUBTEEN [BREMEEH o HKFRS 1 (Amendment) “Limited Exemption from Comparative
F1R(BTE) EBRBRE HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
ERETHRE Adopters”;
BUBET
BR#H%
o ABUBRERE [REEREXZ o HK(FRIC) — Int 14 “Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Z5g - 2E BEFTUR (Amendment) Requirement”; and
F145K(BEIA)
o ABUBHERE [MRATAHH o HK(FRIC) — Int 19 “Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Z8g - 2B cRAE] Equity Instruments’”.
F19%
M =R BT RREY The adoption of these amendments and interpretations
REANE B FEE DY AR E to standards did not result in a significant impact on the
IPEDN-Z- X results and financial position of the Group.
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B 7% R R KT 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

—F——F=HA=+—H 31 March 2012
2. EESTHEEHEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 mEIEXE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) KEBE 5818 [ 7k LR (b) Standards, amendments and interpretation to
EERAFER  ER 2 existing standards that are not yet effective and
T RZEE have not been early adopted by the Group
TH) 2R - 2R 2 BT &2 The following published standards, amendments and
EBoamt TWER-ZE—= interpretation to existing standards are mandatory for the
FMA—RHZENETEHE Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April
FER - if S B0 MR FARAN 2012 or later periods and have not been early adopted by

the Group:
o FEEEH| [Brfsm R a0511 |3 »  HKAS 1 (Amendment) “Presentation of Financial Statements”;
FAF(BFIAR)
o EREAEA [EILHE — W o HKAS 12 (Amendment) “Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
£125(E74)  DREAE] Assets™;
o AFeitE] [EERH]* o HKAS 19 (2011) “Employee Benefits™:
E19%;
(ZF——%)
J ?i’é@ﬁ‘fﬁ” BB BRE o HKAS 27 (2011) “Separate Financial Statements™;
FOH
(:‘?,,g)
o BAGIEL [REERRRAE o HKAS 28 (2011) “Associates and Joint Ventures™;
%28%}5 . PEIRE
T
o AREER [SREENSH o HKAS 32 (Amendment) “Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
BuRgax)  BEMEE Liabilties™;
o EEMBWMEED [EREREEHR o HKFRS 1 (Amendment) ~ “First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
F1R(BIAR) BaEER - Financial Reporting Standards — Severe
e Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates
WIRRRER for First-time Adopters”’;
FnEMBRE
EAH)
o ERHBHSEN [ERRAEEH o HKFRS 1 (Amendment)  “First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
F1H(ETE) KHEL — Standards — Government Loans’%;
1&1}%?&%&%2
15?)&2
o EREBHEEN  [HE - 2HK ¢ HKFRS 7 (Amendment) “Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets”;
FTHR(BTR) EBR
o EREMBHEEN  [HE - 28K ¢ HKFRS 7 (Amendment) “Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
BT (BIK) ENLBARE Financial Liabilities™;
kiRl
o BAUMBHEEL [ERMIAL o HKFRS9 “Financial Instruments’;
F9%
o ERUBREER  [AGHEREK] o HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements’;
E10%;
o EBUBBREER  [ER%RHE] o HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements™;
F11%;
o AAUMBHEEL [BERNAMER o HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities™;
F12% b 4
o ABUBREEN  [DTEREN o HKFRS 13 “Fair Vialue Measurements™; and
E13%;
o ERMBHEEE [RRELER ¢+ HK(FRIC) — Int 20 “Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
%E@ - 2B BRI Surface Mine™.
F20% A4
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31 March 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

Standards, amendments and interpretation to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The directors anticipate that the adoption of the above
new standards, amendments and interpretation to
existing standards will not result in a significant impact on
the results and financial position of the Group.

Certain comparatives have been reclassified mainly to
conform to the current year’s presentation
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31 March 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more than
50% of the voting power but is able to govern the
financial and operating policies by virtue of de-facto
control. De-facto control may arise from circumstances
such as enhanced minority rights or contractual terms
between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets are
also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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31 March 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest over
the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If this consideration is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or
loss.
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31 March 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

(i)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment, if any. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investment in an associated company
is accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in an associated company
includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associated
company equals or exceeds its interest in the associated
company, including any unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associated
company.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment
in an associated company is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associated company and its carrying value and
recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss)
of an associated company’ in the income statement.
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31 March 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (continued)

(c)

Associated companies (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associated company are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in an associated company. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associated companies have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors that
make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”), which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(ifi) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
equity.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation

and accumulated impairment losses,

if any. Cost mainly

represents consideration paid for the rights to use the land on
which various plants and buildings are situated for a period
ranging from 34 to 69 years from the date the respective rights
were granted. Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of leases.
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31 March 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factory and office premises.
Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes purchase price of the asset,
costs transferred from construction in progress and any directly
attributable costs in bringing the asset to the working condition
and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on other assets is
calculated using the straight-line or reducing balance methods
to allocate their cost to their residual values (if any) over their
estimated useful lives with annual rates as follows:

Leasehold land classified as
finance leases

straight-line over the period of
lease

Buildings
Plant and machinery

straight-line 2%
reducing balance 15%

Leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and

reducing balance 10% to 33%

equipment
Motor vehicles
Moulds and tooling

reducing balance 15% to 33%
reducing balance 15% to 50%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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31 March 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery on which construction work has not been completed
and which, upon completion, management intends to hold for
production purposes. Construction in progress is carried at
costs which include development and construction expenditure
incurred and interest and other direct costs attributable to the
development less any accumulated impairment losses. On
completion, construction in progress is transferred to appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“Other gains — net” in the income statement.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
represents the excess of the consideration transferred
over the Company’s interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.



B 7% 3R N R

Notes to the Financial Statements

—F——#=H=+—H

2.

2.7

2.8

EESHEEME R

BILEE(E)
(b)  EERM

EERMBELKAAR - &£
BE B AT B 5 B HE R P HA R Je 3%
BXAN IR R T BESH DI BR - EER
M8 55 A B AROA IR TR HA AT 2 /3
FH(45F) D ERAZRIER
EBEE(A)E -

(c) EfEF

EMEFNERBRRES
#E o ARASREBUERESIRR o

MEAR - BEATRFESHMEENR
=1

BRERECRERH2EE  flinEE
BREENEEERREETAR - &
EEAREHFHBERBRARER KRR
1B 7 BE A U5 Bl B LR EETT AR AT © O
EBRREE 2 REEREEAKRE S
B ZHENNERARER - T E SR
NEE 2 N HEMRHE R AR E
EmMEZRSE /L - RFHRER -
BERRABHRERECREELE
TNREERES - BREEIN ER
XRENEEAESERS A BEHEE
B A AR EBETTIRAT

T 42 38 P8 1% 7] BB 2 28 B P E AR BV AR
SIBE R AR B A RS
EVERE U - BB TSR N AR
BREERAE HUBREARERES
HFEE(BREBE)REE  AAAF
FEWER A R IRE PR S A B R BN A S It
REETRERA

31 March 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets (continued)

(b) Technical know-how

Technical know-how is shown at historical cost. Technical
know-how has definite useful life and is carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation on technical
know-how is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate its cost to its residual value, if any, over its
estimated useful lives of 4 years.

(c) Club debenture

Club debenture represents golf club membership and is
stated at cost less provision made.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, an associated
company and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example, goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation, and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(“cash-generating units”). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries and
associated company is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiaries and associated
company in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following

categories: at fair value through profit or loss,

loans and

receivables and available-for-sale. The classification depends

on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.

Management determines the classification of its financial assets

at initial recognition.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determined payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
reporting date. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables include trade and
notes receivables, deposits and other receivables, and
cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified
in any of the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12 months at
the end of the reporting period.
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31 March 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Financial assets (continued)

As at 31 March 2011 and 2012, the Group did not hold any
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are
presented in the income statement within ‘other gains — net’ in
the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the
income statement as part of other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustment recognised in
equity are included in the income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the income statement.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in the income statement when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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31 March 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.
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31 March 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria referred to in (a)
above.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined by using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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2.

31 March 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call with
banks.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Payables

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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31 March 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company,
its subsidiaries and associated company operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor non-taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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31 March 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is legally enforceable rights to offset current income
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when
the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balance on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans which are available to all relevant
employees. These plans are generally funded through
payments to schemes established by government or
trustee-administered funds. A defined contribution plan is
a pension plan under which the Group pays contributions
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefit
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

All contributions to pension plans are fully and
immediately vested and the Group had no unvested
benefits available to reduce its future contributions.
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31 March 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20

(ii)

(iii)

Employee benefits (continued)

Bonus plan

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.21 Leases (as the lessee)

(i)

Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment that substantially
transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the
lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets
and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in current and non-current liabilities, where appropriate.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
income statement over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

63 eNEmEERAER QA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



B 7% ¥R 3R N R

Notes to the Financial Statements

—E———#F=H=+—H

2. EESTHREE»

2.21

2.22

HEEREBN) (&
(i) AEEHEY

NEERERBE BRI AR
K mE#RBEEHERRMAE 2
o BIEREEN - REK
EHAFEL 2 MREREAR
AT 2 ERER)EHHAN
HAREBNBERPHME -

WA R W i 7 2R

WAIZIHE B K B B Y sk e A B
ZRFERE - WATEHBREET - R
B BT - AN S E A R 3
BRI -

AREBBNEEA ST BN E MRA S
B BRIBEAARREEM S RA R A LA
R AN SR B AT B IR AT A 15 5 (51 B
R A - AEBERBEBERS
R EE - XREETPER - XZ8
AREBRRZFERR

(i) HEE T

EEENEMBARATSR
NER FPEXEMmREEAR
2 (R 78 MH B R MR IR e e
% HEEmWamAERA
B o

(i)  FEKA

B A SAF R 2% B A e

o

(i)  HLKA

BRHEORSWAZAHAE
BORTER ©

aNEEERAERAA 64
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

31 March 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Leases (as the lessee) (continued)

(i) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease periods.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net
of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of
each arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and collectivity of
the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

(iii) Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease periods.
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31 March 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and
cash flow and fair value interest-rate risks. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group.
The use of derivative financial instruments to hedge certain
risk exposures is governed by the Group’s policies approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Group would
occasionally enter into certain forward foreign exchange contracts
to manage its exchange risks. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the Mainland
China and Canada with most of the transactions settled
in United States dollar (“US$”), HK$, Chinese Renminbi
(“BRMB”) and Canadian dollar (“CAD”). Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to US$, CAD
and RMB. Since HK$ is pegged to US$, management
are of the opinion that the exchange rate risk exposure
arising from US$ with respect to HK$ is insignificant.
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3.

31 March 2012

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Management has a policy to require group companies
to manage their foreign exchange risk against their
functional currencies. It mainly includes managing the
exposures arising from sales and purchases made by
the relevant group companies in currencies other than
their own functional currencies. The Group also manages
its foreign exchange risk by performing regular reviews
of the Group’s net foreign exchange exposures and
would consider the use of foreign exchange contracts to
manage its foreign exchange risks, where appropriate.
As at 31 March 2012, the Group did not have any
outstanding foreign exchange contracts.

As at 31 March 2012, certain of the Group’s receivables,
cash and bank balances and trade payables were also
denominated in foreign currencies, details of which have
been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial
statements.

At 31 March 2012, if HK$ had weakened or strengthened
by 5% against RMB, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year (2011: post-tax loss)
would have been approximately HK$188,000 higher/
lower (2011: HK$43,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB-
denominated financial assets and liabilities.

At 31 March 2012, if CAD had weakened or strengthened
by 5% against US$, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$801,000 lower/higher (2011:
HK$555,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses or gains on translation of CAD-
denominated financial assets and liabilities.
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3.

31 March 2012

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk as
investments held by the Group are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets in the balance sheet as at 31
March 2012. The Group is not exposed to commodity
price risk.

As at 31 March 2012, an insurance contract comprising
investment and insurance elements is classified as
available-for-sale. The contract is guaranteed by a
minimum return rate of 3% per annum.

As at 31 March 2012,
equity and debt securities and other investments

if the fair market values of the

underlying the insurance contracts increase by 1% in
excess of the guaranteed return, the Group’s equity
would have been approximately HK$147,600 higher.

Credit risk

The Group has significant concentrations of credit
risk and its relatively long overdue receivables are
mainly related to a few individual customers. The
carrying amounts of cash at banks, trade and notes
receivables, deposits and other receivables included in
the consolidated balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at banks are
deposited in major financial institutions located in
Hong Kong, the Mainland China and Canada, which
management believes are of high credit quality.
Management does not expect any losses arising from
non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale
of products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. Normally the Group does
not require collaterals from trade debtors.
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3.

31 March 2012

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

Management makes periodic collective assessment as
well as individual assessment on the recoverability of
trade and other receivables, based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period, the financial
strength of the trade and other debtors, the relevant
credit insurance coverage, and whether there are any
disputes with the relevant debtors. Credit insurance is
generally adopted for customers having relatively less
business dealings in the past or involving larger amount
of sales transactions. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances and directors are of the opinion that
adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has been
made in these financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for additions of and upgrades on property, plant and
equipment, settlement of borrowings, payment for
trade and other payables and payment for operating
expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of internal resources
and bank borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

Taking into account the repayment on demand clauses
on bank borrowings, the table below analyses the
Group’s borrowings into the relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows which include interest payments computed
using contractual rates. Specifically, for bank loans which
contain a repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis
shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period in
which the Group can be required to pay, that is if the
lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call
the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
other borrowings without repayment on demand clause is
prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.
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31 March 2012

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

—FR —FE@MEF —FZRF
Between 1 Between 2
Within 1 year and 2 years and 5 years
FAET FEr FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Group
At 31 March 2012
Borrowings 259,184 4,771 2,941
At 31 March 2011
Borrowings 279,423 693 —

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the
maturity date of term loans with a repayment on demand
clause is based on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreements, disregarding the repayment
on demand clauses. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, including
interest payments computed using contractual rates,
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not consider that it
is probable that the banks will exercise their discretion
to demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such term loans will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements.
-EZWE —EELE
—£R Between Between RENE
Within 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Over 5 years
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£8 Group
—8--§=f=1-H At 31 March 2012
B8 Borrowings 214,527 22,816 25,614 10,928
[EfS & £EER Trade payables 143,380 = = =
R ERREEMNTUE Accruals and other payables 19,873 = = -
—E-—-E=f=1-H At 31 March 2011
B8 Borrowings 228,836 19,148 36,746 =
R EZRE Trade payables 186,095 = = =
R ERREEMNUE Accruals and other payables 19,800 = - -
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3.

31 March 2012

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011, all the
Company’s financial liabilities are due for settlement
contractually within 12 months.

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the cash at banks, details of which are
disclosed in note 27. The Group’s exposure to changes in
interest rates is mainly attributable to its bank borrowings,
details of which are disclosed in note 28. Borrowings
carried at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group has not used any interest
rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2012, if the interest rates on borrowings
had been 50 basis points higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would
have been HK$414,000 lower/higher (2011: post-tax loss
would have been HK$425,000 lower/higher), mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.



B 7% 3R N R

Notes to the Financial Statements

—FE——F=H=1+—H

31 March 2012

3. MBEBREE# 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 AFEMEE) 3.2  Fair value estimation (continued)

R —ER—_FT——F=H=+— As at 31 March 2011 and 2012, the different levels of fair value

H £B A HEESHEENTRE measurements of the Group’s available-for-sale finance asset are

T EHZAEERATFEERNOT ¢ define as follow:

o REEEXBERERMS L o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
ZHRECREHARE)(BH—) - assets or liabilities (level 1).

. FAE—BRAZREUINZE o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
EXBBEZUERZ2E - T that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
BEBMER) S HE(ITAE (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is derived from prices)
BR)(ER=) - (level 2).

o FEERUBEMGEEBECEE o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
HEBBEL2E(CTAIER28)(E observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
=) o (level 3).

TRERMEENHEESHERER — The following table shows the fair value measurement hierarchy

TE—_—_FR-_FT——F=ZA=+—HHK to which the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets measured

AEEZFERER : at fair value belong as at 31 March 2012 and 2011:

—E——F —E——fF
2012 2011
FETT FET
HK$°000 HK$’000

EE Assets:

B — Level 1

& e HE 25 Equity securities 302 387

BHR= Level 3

RBREXNZIRFER Account value of insurance contracts 14,457 —

14,759 387

R %R A REFF B ISk 23 o

FEERTSEENT B TANRFER
BEEBNTSRETIR - ZHREA
BANEMREZZSH 58 &
2 ERAL  EERBEREERRE
S MZERELRBRAFRHEE
ETHNERNERTERZE  &m5
BARRERE - REBEFENPIBEEEN
MERERERERE HETABR
REH— - EFEZBREES 2 AFER

PRFPXHMAAER -

Details of the above insurance contract is set out in note 23.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. The fair value measurement
of the Group’s equity securities classified as available-for-sale are
classified within level 1 as they are publicly traded on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.
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3.

31 March 2012

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use-of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to estimate the fair
value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The fair value
measurement of the Group’s insurance contracts classified as
available-for-sale is classified as level 3 as its measurement
involves certain non-observable market data and is approximated
by the account value prior to any cash surrender charge quoted
by the insurer.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and notes receivables,
and deposits and other receivables, and the Group’s current
financial liabilities including trade payables, accruals and other
payables, and borrowings, approximate their fair values due to
their short maturities.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-
current borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet)
less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
“equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net
debt.
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31 March 2012

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.3 Capital risk management (continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31
March 2012 and 2011:

—g—= —F—

2012 2011

FAET F&T

HK$’000 HK$'000

RIEE (Ha£28) Total borrowings (Note 28) 266,645 280,107
i BEe MRS EEW(ATE27) Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 27) (105,444) (104,380)
B F58 Net debt 161,201 175,727
B Total equity 378,464 371,019
FERSWIN Total capital 539,665 546,746
BAREEL = Gearing ratio 30% 32%

RZZT——F=A=+—H £EB7A
5 F {& B 458 %) /& 389,795,000 7 7T
— T ——4 : 435,800,000/ 7T) © M
H 311,057,000 (=T — —F :
346,343,000 87T) EHEBEERA -

EEGRhE R A B

AEESRBBERBY B RROER R EAM
REeRRARE A RFFNEERE - T
R A RAEE R RS o AR B R REN
EFF S 2 @t lE T~ — RSN A EIR 4
R U REEE RBRO G RRR - A
BYARTEMRFEEHEERBEZREE
EERAE -

() EERE

REBBESHBRIINHE2.8
FHREBETAARSBEMBES
Z-ReEMBETZ ATKESE IR
EREEMER -  WEAEREAM
it FHEHIIRMIRET o

As at 31 March 2012, the total banking facilities made available
to the Group amounted to approximately HK$389,795,000 (2011:
HK$435,800,000), of which approximately HK$311,057,000
(2011: HK$346,343,000) was utilised by the Group.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

Estimates and judgements used in preparing financial statements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates, details of which are set
out in note 17.
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4, EESTHETTRHAE 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
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JUDGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, being the fair value
less costs to sell which is estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate.

During the year ended 31 March 2012,
conducted an overall review of the Group’s property, plant and

the directors

equipment upon completing the consolidation process of the
Group’s manufacturing operation at a single factory location.
Consequently, certain plant and equipments used under
the “Consumer Electronics and Electronic Components and
Parts Manufacturing” segment with a total carrying amount of
approximately HK$10,266,000 are not expected to generate any
future economic benefits in the future and impairment loss of the
same amount has been made during the year. Apart from that,
due to the continuous loss suffered by the Group’s manufacturing
operations, management considers this signifies impairment
indicator and has performed impairment reviews on the Group’s
remaining production assets. No further impairment is required
based on these reviews.

For the purposes of the impairment reviews, the “Contract
Electronic Manufacturing Services” and “Consumer Electronics
and Electronic Components and Parts Manufacturing” segments
are distinguished as two separate CGUs. The recoverable amount

EZHERXFE - RRAEBEEE is determined based on fair value less cost to sell. The calculation
RERESRER mAtEFRERE use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved

HRMBEENRSRERN - ERF
Ng 2B R BRI EIE RN -

VANEE-*
a
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by management for the purposes of impairment reviews covering
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated according to a constant-growth assumption.
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31 March 2012

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (continued)

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment (continued)

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations for the
Group is as follows:

—_Eg—=

2012

Average growth rates in the first year of forecast 33%
Growth rates in subsequent years 3% to 6%
Gross margins 10% to 14%
Discount rates 11.5%

The higher average growth rate in the first year of forecast is due
to the elimination of production disruption during the Group’s
consolidation process of its factory operation into a single factory
location, and is determined with reference to the purchase orders
committed by and under negotiation with the customers. The
growth rates adopted in subsequent years are largely consistent
and do not exceed the industry growth forecast.

The budgeted gross margins were determined by management
based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. The annual discount rate is post tax and reflects
market assessments of the time value and the specific risks
relating to the relevant operation. Management considers that
the gross margins and growth rates are the most significant
assumptions. A shortfall in growth rate by 1% throughout the
forecast period would result in the recoverable amounts of the
related property, plant and equipment being lower than their
carrying amounts by approximately HK$2,398,000. A shortfall
in gross margin by 1% throughout the forecast period would
result in the recoverable amounts being lower than the carrying
amounts by approximately HK$3,474,000.

Judgment is required to determine key assumptions adopted in
the cash flow projections and the changes to key assumptions
can significantly affect these cash flow projections.
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31 March 2012

4, EESTHETTRHAE 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENT (continued)

(c) FENEEFE (c) Net realisable value of inventories
FEAIEEFEERSEBMHTEEN Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
MRastiHERY - AEMETIEERITH in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
RGBT EELE R ERMIED - completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
HEAGT AT AR P QR MR FH FE on the current market condition and the historical experience
1T HE R P ER VS e i H R &K of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
E o EEEBNSEEHEH TGS change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
5t e and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle.

Management reassesses these estimates at each balance sheet
date.

(d) FE UK BR TR R B (d) Impairment of receivables
7N £ (8] 77 BR S R BR 1B I HL th 8 U SR AT The Group’s management determines the provision for
W B 72 [ 2 74 5t FE UK BR 18 & e Uk Z= 1% impairment of trade and notes receivables and other receivables
R B FEGR M R E B4 o AT = based on an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
ERHERF &Ei\mmﬁj\ﬂ’ﬂméfgﬁ The assessment is based on the credit history of its customers
KERMSMRN - RRFERZ N EHE R and other debtors and the current market condition, and requires
R %’*EE@%%‘? HE#ETE the use of judgements and estimates. Management reassesses
& o the provision at each balance sheet date.

(e) EHRIELEEH (e) Current and deferred income tax

REBERBNZEREEENER
EES AR ME m%ﬁ%'ﬁﬁ
e - EAEEBTEE RetEL])
HEE mmmmX%&ﬁ% fin 5% 35
EHNRRBBEREEN KR EE
Y5 AEHEE e EETAMEE
BARE B AT A0 RIS PG T B4 -

ﬁ%?%ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ R

FEMEEREEBERAARRA KL
RERTRAA AEREZEERER
FHEGEMER - EBHzSBER
EfTAZEN - AlZEEBerfEst
B 2 AR BIEEFTS & E 2
REFEHERS -

VANEE-*
a
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The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions and
calculations during the ordinary course of business for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. When the expectation is different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and taxation charges in the period in which
such estimates is changed.
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4. EESTAEFTRHAE 2 4.

(f) ETRMEEQFE

FEREMSEENHTHE TANRFER
BEERNMIERETIR -

REEAEMSEENPHETE  &£F
B ERAFEATE - MELER
BEZFENE BARBRREEEE
BEHEG  FTERGFFERAZTS

5. WARZHEHR 5.

- Turnover
=
=

an Sales of goods

31 March 2012

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (continued)

(f) Fair value of financial assets

The fair values of financial assets that are traded in an active
market are determined by the quoted market prices.

For the fair values of financial assets not traded in an active
market, the Group would use the quoted price provided by
counterparty to estimate the fair values. The methodologies,
models and assumptions used in valuing these financial assets
require judgement by management which are mainly based on
market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

&8
Group
—_ZE—— —F——
2012 2011
FET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,408,617 1,781,010
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31 March 2012

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information

The Group is principally engaged in the design, development,
manufacturing and distribution of electronic components, contract

electronic manufacturing services and consumer electronics, and the
distribution of personal computer products.

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the executive
directors (collectively referred to as the “CODM”) that make strategic
decisions. The CODM reviews the internal reporting of the Company and
its subsidiaries in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The CODM considers the business from the perspective of the nature
of operations and the type of products, including the “Electronic
Components Distribution”, “Contract Electronic Manufacturing
Services”, “Consumer Electronics and Electronic Components and Parts

Manufacturing” and “Personal Computer Products Distribution”.

Each of the Group’s operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment
transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms and
conditions that would normally be available to unrelated third parties.
CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of profit before income tax. Other information provided to
the CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the financial
statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude deferred tax assets, available-
for-sale financial assets and corporate assets (mainly including certain
corporate properties and equipment and corporate cash and bank
balances), all of which are managed on a central basis. Liabilities of
reportable segments exclude current and deferred income tax liabilities,
corporate borrowings and other corporate liabilities. These are part of the
reconciliation to total balance sheet assets and liabilities.
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WARDEBER @ 5.

PEER(E)

R Turnover

HEEM Sales of goods

ERIBEE Results of reportable segments

EROW7FERNEERNE  Areconciliation of results of reportable
MASHRNT - segments to profit for the year is as

follows:

ERIBEE Results of reportable segments

RABKA Unallocated income

AAERZ Unallocated expenses

fags Operating results

FEKA Finance income

BERR Finance costs

BRBLATRE Profit before income tax

MERR Income tax expense

REERE Profit for the year

HitpHER Other segment information:

2UNES i Capital expenditure

HETEERE %
BERRE )/ B
nE  BELRRETE

BVEESRH
TiERERE
FEAERE

mx - BERRERE

FRAE
XA ERE

(Gain)/loss on disposal of land use rights,
and property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of land use rights

Impairment of inventories

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Write down of inventories

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables

31 March 2012

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information (continued)

BE-Z-“E-A-t-HLEE

Year ended 31 March 2012

ETHEEMR
Ef et
Rp#EE
ETEEAN Consumer BAZHK
4£EM%  Electronics and EmSH
R Contract Electronic Personal
Electronic Electronic Components Computer
Components Manufacturing and Parts Products g
Distribution Services Manufacturing Distribution Total
FiEr T TEr TEn FiEn
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
840,412 164,418 128,917 274,870 1,408,617
16,119 4,757 (40,002) 5,839 (13,287)
(13,287)
41,941
(6,639)
22,015
796
(6,860)
15,951
(7,190)
8,761
2,447 8,881 9,852 50 21,230
73 (21,005) (21,009) - (41,941)
1,153 4,805 6,003 355 12,316
- - 1,124 - 1,124
33 - 369 - 402
- - = 1,458 1,458
- - 10,266 - 10,266
3,435 - - - 3,435
229 - 135 240 604
79 BN EERKRERARAA
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—E——F=-H=+—H 31 March 2012
5. WARDEHER =) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
PEER(E Segment information (continued)

HE-Z-"F=P=1-HLEE
As at 31 March 2012

ETHEERK
ETTEE
RB#HEE
ETE£EN Consumer BAEMK
4£EMRHE  Electronics and EmSH
BT S Contract Electronic Personal
Electronic Electronic Components Computer
Components Manufacturing and Parts Products L
Distribution Services Manufacturing Distribution Total
FET FET FAET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
AHEE Segment assets
HE Goodwill - - - 28,781 28,781
EER Technical know-how - - 2,249 - 2,249
HEitHHEE Other segment assets 302,642 127,958 181,690 65,402 677,692
302,642 127,958 183,939 94,183 708,722
HNESREE Avallable-for-sale financial assets 14,759
EEMEREE Deferred income tax assets 514
Hp kP REE Other unallocated assets 93,518
AHEEAERNEE Total assets per consolidated balance S
Lt sheet 817,513
AHEE Segment liabilities
AB8E Segment liabilties 271,780 30,472 80,649 32,684 415,585
FERHR Tax payable 1,469
BREmEHEaE Deferred income tax liabilities 1,652
ERAEEE Other unallocated liabilities 20,343
AHEEEBRNER Total liabilities per consolidated
ok balance sheet 439,049
AMBERBERAA 80
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5. WARZHER @ 5.
PEER(E)
R Turnover
HEEM Sales of goods
EHEIBEE Results of reportable segments
SRNW2 EERAEE  Areconciliation of results of reportable
FlBt AT - segments to profit for the year is as
follows:
EHEIBEE Results of reportable segments
RARES Unallocated expenses
mEfR Operating results
BERK - 38 Finance costs — net
BRBH BRI Profit before income tax
MERRZ Income tax expense
KEERE Profit for the year
HiaHEs Other segment information:
EAMT Capital expenditure
WENE  WEREE (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and
(W) B equipment
% BERIERE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
BV EAERH Amortisation of intangible assets
TifFFRERE Amortisation of land use rights
FERE Write down of inventories
[EREERERERE Provision for impairment of trade receivables

31 March 2012

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information (continued)

BE_Z——F=A=t-HIEE

Year ended 31 March 2011

ETHEEMR
Efnatt
Rt EE
BTEEAN Consumer EAZH
HEMRH Electronics and EmiSH
BT AN Contract Electronic Personal
Electronic Electronic Components Computer
Components Manufacturing and Parts Products et
Distribution Services Manufacturing Distribution Total
TET TET TET AT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,117,008 201,777 174,112 288,118 1,781,010
39,210 2,382 (16,643) 5,491 30,440
30,440
(10,615)
19,825
(5,166)
14,659
(6,570)
8,089
1,336 5,713 12,074 29 19,162
(127) - 19 18 (90)
875 2,136 9,596 431 13,038
- - 1,124 - 1,124
- - 402 - 402
2,482 - - - 2,482
603 = 1,249 433 2,285
81 EfmEERERADA
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WARDEHER =) 5.

PEER(E

AHEE Segment assets

HE Goodwil

EER Technical know-how

EpHaE Other segment assets

MEHESREE Avallable-for-sale financial assets

EEMEHEAE Deferred income tax assets

ERDREE Other unallocated assets

AR EEEBRNEE Total assets per consolidated balance
ok sheet

AHEE Segment liabilities

AHEE Segment liabilities

R Tax payable

BEEMERARE Deferred income tax liabilties

HxpEafE Other unallocated liabilties

AHEEEERNER Total liabilities per consolidated balance
5 sheet

EANEERERAERA
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31 March 2012

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information (continued)

BE-Z——F-A=1t-HLFR
As at 31 March 2011

EFREERR
B et
Rt
BYEXEN Consumer EAEH
EERE Electronics and EmiEH
B LAHLHE Contract Electronic Personal
Electronic Electronic Components Computer
Components Manufacturing and Parts Products it
Distribution Services Manufacturing Distribution Total
TET TET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - - 29,615 29,615
— — 31378 — 3,873
348,722 93,141 174,004 66,127 681,994
348,722 93,141 177,377 95,742 714,982
387
1,086
151,870
868,325
332,771 66,964 57,587 32,293 489,615
1,106
1,885
4,700
497,306
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WARDEER 2 5.

DEWER(E)

REZEMANEE  IMBEFPRRTESHEER
AT

B Hong Kong
AR B K BE Mainland China

JEEM North America
BOM Europe
HibgaME xR

R_ZE——F=ZA=+—8 URBEBZ*R
BEELT K2 THLEcmEE A
ERSREEMBHEEIMN L ERRES L
MR E BB EEKR#ERR) A 12,363,000
B L(= T — — £ : 10,743,0005 7T ) * 1M i
REMEE(EELSHBEEMNER)NIERD

B E# A151,164,0005 T(= B — — F :
201,902,000/ 7L) °

Haug A 6.
e WA Rental income

EAh Others

BEBAALWAZEE T A50,000ET(—F
——%F : 48,0008 7T) °

Other Asian countries

31 March 2012

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment information (continued)
The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external

customers attributed to Hong Kong and other locations are analysed as
follows:

ShERE F Wi
Revenue from external customers

—_E2—— —F——
2012 2011
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
435,385 601,343
479,585 635,741
322,108 333,615
156,834 179,907
14,705 30,404
1,408,617 1,781,010

At 31 March 2012, the total of non-current assets other than goodwill,
available-for-sale financial assets, rental deposits, and deferred tax
assets (there are no employment benefit assets and rights arising
under insurance contracts) located in Hong Kong is approximately
HK$12,363,000 (2011: HK$10,743,000), and the total of these non-
current assets located in other locations (mainly in the Mainland China
and Canada) is approximately HK$151,164,000 (2011: HK$201,902,000).

OTHER INCOME

—E—= =
2012 2011
FETT FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
828 582

428 312
1,256 894

The direct outgoing in respect of the rental income is HK$50,000 (2011:
HK$48,000).

83 eNEmEERAER QA
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31 March 2012

7. OTHER GAINS

—E—= T
2012 2011
FHET TFET
HK$°000 HK$’000
Net exchange gains 1,120 5,420
8. EXPENSES BY NATURE
—E—= —F——
2012 2011
T FEr
HK$’000 HK$'000
Changes in inventories of finished goods and
work-in-progress (8,257) 29,573
Trading merchandise, raw materials and
consumables used 1,196,813 1,507,049
Provision for impairment of inventories
(Note 24) 1,458 —
Direct write-down of inventories 3,435 2,482
Auditor’s remuneration 2,446 2,451
Amortisation of land use rights 402 402
Depreciation
— owned property, plant and equipment 12,052 12,953
— property, plant and equipment held under
finance leases 264 85
Amortisation of other intangible assets 1,124 1,124
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(included in general and administrative
expenses) 604 2,285
Employment benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) 134,070 130,387
Operating lease rental in respect of land and
buildings 9,618 9,098
Travelling and office expenses 30,692 26,080
Transportation expenses 7,119 7,253
Advertising expenses 444 486
Repairs and maintenance expenses 3,002 4,094
Other expenses 25,367 31,787
1,420,653 1,767,589
Representing:
Cost of sales 1,278,050 1,626,643
Selling and distribution expenses 23,330 27,187
General and administrative expenses 119,273 118,759
1,420,653 1,767,589
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—FE——F=H=1+—H 31 March 2012
9. EIEFNMX 9. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES
BREEMNEeCETERFFAIOT : Employment benefit expenses, including directors’ emoluments, consists
of:
—=2—= —_F——
2012 2011
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
oM - TE KERL Wages, salaries and allowances 121,303 118,957
1AL Bonuses 3,573 3,340
RIKESHA — EEENKETE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 5,857 4,645
EAIF Welfare and benefits 3,337 3,445
134,070 130,387
BE_T —_F=-A=+HLFE BI&E Employee benefit expenses for the year ended 31 March 2012 included
FIF X 815 — I8 /206,000 8 T A R BB A an amount of HK$206,000 (2011: Nil) arising from a share incentive
BREP—UKBEER L —HRBRBIHEE scheme entered into with a director of the Group during the year.
HHEEER -
10. RMERAE — FH 10. FINANCE COSTS — NET
—_E2—— —F——
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITIF A EHA Interest income from bank deposits 796 73
2 BB B ERBV ERI T B R Interest expense on bank loans which
Z A B contains a repayment on demand clause (5,767) (5,228)
RAFAESHEMERZFEZH  Interest expense on other borrowings wholly
repayable within 5 years (247) —
AR FREFNEMBERZTE Interest expense on other borrowing wholly
gl repayable over 5 years (12) =
AR E 2 M B E Interest element of finance leases (49) (11)
ESENFBER(Hi#38) Interest expense on loans from directors
(Note 38) (785) -
____________ (6,860) (5,289)
RERA — F8 Finance costs — net (6,064) (5,166)
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—E———#F=H=+—H

11. FEHAX 11.

ARFCERRBFRERE - HEMNEH IR
BREBRBEMKZAOMEBERRETEELIR
B&EBZatBRBUE MK 16.6% (=T ——
F:16.5%) 2 KRR - PEKY REE
ZARMRBHELERMENR  HEE26% (=
T——F:26%) MRMEARIRZEEZ
RAITIRBMNERAFHR - HERIB% (=T

31 March 2012

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda. Hong Kong profits
tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong.
Companies established and operated in the Mainland China are subject
to PRC corporate income tax at the rate of 25% (2011: 25%). Companies
established and operated in Canada are subject to Canadian income tax
at the rate of 35% (2011: 35%).

——4F : 35%) °
—B—= —F——
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
EHBIE Current taxation
— BAER — Hong Kong profits tax 1,623 1,198
— FRBEMEH — PRC corporate income tax 3,703 3,868
— MEXMAEH — Canadian income tax 1,525 1,655
BT IBE = R e E 4 RE Deferred taxation relating to the origination
(H1a£31) and reversal of temporary differences
(Note 31) 339 (151)
7,190 6,570

AEBBRBTADEN 2 MG - BERAEEZ
BRMaE 2 Bim b2 ZFEAT

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate
as follows:

—=_— -

2012 2011

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

B 7% BT g A Profit before income tax 15,951 14,659
TRIEHZ 16.5% Fi Rz & Calculated at taxation rate of 16.5%

(ZZE——%F : 16.5%) (2011: 16.5%) 2,632 2,419
TRBERZZE Effect of different tax rate (2,528) 449
BERGZ A Income not subject to tax (7,794) (2,431)
AR 2 T Expenses not deductible 4,295 1,423
RIER 2 BIEE R Tax losses not recognised 10,614 4,551
MEBFIE Withholding tax - 656
Hth Others (29) (497)
I Taxation charge 7,190 6,570

aNEEERAERAA 86
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=F—_—F-fj-F—H 31 March 2012
12. EERERTHAEME 12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
(a) EEMS (a) Directors’ emoluments
RZE——F=RA=+—HAREKE The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for the
EZMeNT : year ended 31 March 2012 is set out below:
BREHT
Contribution
FeREE MERa to retirement
ok Salaries and Discretionary benefit ek
ESfF Name of Director Fees allowances bonuses scheme Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HITES Executive directors
EEks Mr. LAU Tak Wan - 3,372 - 158 3,530
3t e Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky - 1,151 - 54 1,205
FRERE Mr. WAN Chor Fai - 1,123 - 43 1,166
REERE Mr. MAK Hon Kai, Stanly - 1,362 771 63 2,202

BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors

ERATE Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 100 - - - 100
BRERLT Dr. LIU Ngai Wing 75 - - _ 75
BEELE Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 50 - - _ 50

225 7,008 i 318 8,328
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—E——F=H=1—H 31 March 2012

12. EERSRITHAEME 2 12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) BEEME(E) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
R_E——F=ZA=1+—HARAZE The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for the
EZMemT - year ended 31 March 2011 is set out below:

BIREHH
Contribution
HE R BYBTEA to retirement
ik Salaries and Discretionary benefit L
B34 Name of Director Fees allowances bonuses scheme Total
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HiTES Executive directors
AGERkE Mr. LAU Tak Wan - 3,345 - 158 3,503
BBzt Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky - 1,142 - 54 1,196
FRELE Mr. WAN Chor Fai - 1,088 - 43 1,131
BEERE Mr. MAK Hon Kai, Stanly - 1,326 820 61 2,207
BIkHTEE  Independent non-executive directors
ZRALE Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 100 - - - 100
E«a}ﬁ%f@i Dr. LIU Ngai Wing 75 - - - 75
25ER Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 50 - - - 50
225 6,901 820 316 8,262
SEERAFENERZEFAME No director waived any emoluments during the year (2011: Nil).
(ZT—F : 8) - RAFEMESL No emolument was paid to any directors as inducement to join or
TEESEMMNBEMES R EESTHN as compensation for loss of office during the year (2011: Nil). No
ZHECE——F: &) EZHE director has been granted or exercised any share option during
BT TEERMBERE(ZE——F ¢ the year (2011: Nil).
) o
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—F——F=HA=+—H 31 March 2012

12. EERSRITHAEME 2 12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) AVBRSHEAL (b) Five highest paid individuals
AFEEEENRAERSTMAT2ED The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Z2(ZE——F: UK )EE Hie Group for the year include four (2011: four) directors whose
BEEREXDT - Ep—R(ZZT—— emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
F:—RB)BEsFALTZHMEH TN emoluments paid and payable to the remaining one (2011: one)
™ individual are as follows:

—=2—= —_F——
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BN & e RHEMRRL Basic salaries and allowances 647 837
BIBIEAL Discretionary bonuses 481 =
RARSKA — EEMKETE Pension costs — defined contribution plan 30 12
1,158 849
[ w1 N The emoluments fell within the following band:
A"
Number of individual
—Fg—= —E——
2012 2011
£ % 1,000,000 7T Nil — HK$1,000,000 - 1
1,000,001 & T E 2,000,000 % 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 —
RAFEN AZZE=FTAT(BEE During the year, no emolument was paid to the five highest
EREMET)  WEENEAMESIE paid individuals (including directors and other employees) as
ANBEMEIREBUNBECCZT inducement to join or as compensation for loss of office (2011:
——F:F)o Nil).

89 eNEmEERAER QA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



B 7% ¥R 3R N R

Notes to the Financial Statements

—E———#F=H=+—H

13.

RETEE
B8

AEEBETMBEARSREHRKGE  AFA
BEORRGT BDADI BB ([HERET S ) K2
EestEl([RESsE ) FTEEREE - BER
KetdI R REet S cEEREECEED
A BHEVEEREESRKE -

ERERAGFET  AEERZREDRIZIE
BHENBOZAEEARR - BEERKLE
MM ARBEERBE 2R AEERF A UL E
RERER R 2 EFKFE - BE_F——FK
“E—F=A=t—HIFEAR  AEEL
R A BT R EE AT & T 2 5k - =
T—_F=ZHA=+—H EZET  ZER
BERER 2 BIR A] A {E IR A SRS A R B K
Z RIAHX) /59,0008 TL(—F ——F : 9,000/8
7)) ©

ERESAIT  AREREZREENFKESR
BHABRGZRATMEABEF IR 2 ER)
B 2AHRR - AEERERET 2HRER
BAKS1,00087T BRAEEBEHRK - 2
BESHRX KN TRESINRAERE
A FESRANERFBES

FE

BRRPBEDEPIRE - FESTEKREGHES
AR E B RKF BIER - EZTEIT - &£ F
ZEERERESAGHAL(BREHSE 2/
RAEAL) #16%-8% KK - MEBREEEAE
A BKIHEIRB8%-22% © BrIA L g FR51 - KB
BH BN BERRRIR 2 Yeas R&dE - itH
ZEBRKETE B EHRKERRERIMENK
&I
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13.

31 March 2012

PENSION SCHEMES

Hong Kong

The Group has two defined contribution pension schemes, the retirement
scheme organised under the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO Scheme”) and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”), for its employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group under independently administered funds.

Under the ORSO Scheme, the Group and each of its employees make
monthly contribution to the scheme of approximately 5% respectively,
of the employees’ salary. The unvested benefits of employees who
have terminated employment are utilised by the Group to reduce its
future contributions. No unvested benefits has been utilised under the
scheme during the year ended 31 March 2012 and 2011. The amount
of unvested benefits as at 31 March 2012 that are available to reduce
the Group’s future contributions was approximately HK$9,000 (2011:
HK$9,000).

Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its employees makes
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant
income, as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance.
Both the Group’s and the employee’s contributions are subjected to a
cap of HK$1,000 per month and contributions thereafter are voluntary.
The contributions are fully and immediately vested in the employees.

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the Mainland China, the
Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its relevant
employees in the Mainland China. The Group’s relevant employees make
monthly contributions to the plans at approximately 5% to 8% of the
relevant income (comprising salaries, allowances and bonus), while the
Group makes monthly contributions at approximately 8% to 22% of such
relevant income and has no further obligations for the actual payment of
post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire post-retirement benefits
payable to retired employees.
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13.

14.

15.

NEEFE®
e

REEFZERAMENEEREMZEZH € K
TETERENEBREFSIN - AMERENR
©7HEI(CPP) & AE R - HRNEIZEE AFN
BREKRIRDE Z24.95% (T ——4F : 4.95%)
R BFEERESEMERSBWABTZR
392,0007 T (#H % 7 50,100 0L ) (=T ——
£ : 370,000 % 7T (FHE 54 48,300 07T ) ) °

DNEEERFEABMLEN

AAREREEARMERNEARR M BEHRE
ABRB A 516,487,000/ L (— T —— £ :
13,000%7L) °

Eﬁ /Lé:\

Y& -l s Rz X
(ZZ——F : H%1.0 B1)
(K1 (i)

(i) EEHRBREHE_T——FR=-_FT—
ZEAA=ZTHIEZFHEE -

(ii) REZFE—Z=—F A=+t NBRITZEH
EETERRERGRE -

RIE——FRXA=Z+HBTZES L &
EEFRERARESFEEB.08M - ZE
BREER=Z—FNATAAIRE -

13.

14.

15.

31 March 2012

PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

Canada

The Group is required to make monthly contribution to the National
Canada Pension Plan (“CPP”) in respect of its employees in Canada
based on the relevant employees’ salaries, with the exceptions of certain
excluded employment and benefits, at a rate of 4.95% (2011: 4.95%)
of the employees’ salaries subject to a maximum annual pensionable
earnings of HK$392,000 (equivalent to CAD50,100) (2011: HK$370,000
(equivalent to CAD48,300)).

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately
HK$16,487,000 (2011: HK$13,000).

Final, proposed, of Nil (2011: HK1.0 cent)
per share (note (i)

DIVIDENDS
—F—= —F——
2012 2011
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
- 3,039

Notes:
(i) No interim dividend was declared by the Company’s directors for the
periods ended 30 September 2011 and 2010.

(ii) At a meeting held on 28 June 2012, no final dividend was declared by the

Company’s directors for the year ended 31 March 2012.

At a meeting held on 30 June 2011, the Company’s directors proposed a
final dividend of HK1.0 cent per share, which was paid on 19 September
2011.
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16. SR&EF
(a) HAK
SREARZFZRREFEAR ) EDF

BAERLGENRARREHITEERZ
INEFHHHUE -

NEEER B ARG
(77:/’573)

BB MEFHRTHE

(F) in issue ("000)

BRREARR R CEN£48)
(b) #E

SAEESREERNE  EHERITER
Bz i BAE L AR - ARRAA
RITERIREFEERRE G - —FT——
F=H —Jr*EEJ*HHFEﬁ P RTTEERRAR
BEAAREEER - I&ttﬁxﬁ&%%
MEZEEARTER - M=

31 March 2012

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

—E—= ==
2012 2011
Profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company (HK$'000) 8,786 8,194
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
310,587 303,643
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) 2.83 2.70

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all the Company’s outstanding warrants. Dilutive
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2011 equal basic
earnings per share as the exercise of the outstanding warrants
would be anti-dilutive, whereas there is no outstanding warrants

F=A=+—8 - E‘JxxﬁﬁﬂifﬂfZ% as at 31 March 2012.
AHERE o
17. B2 17. GOODWILL
—E—= == ——
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
PR Cost
H97] Beginning of the year 29,771 28,277
EHZER Exchange differences (834) 1,494
AR End of the year 28,937 29,771
ZEHRIE Accumulated impairment losses
REA—B&K=A=+—H As at 1 April and 31 March (156) (156)
BREFE Net book amount 28,781 29,615
aNMEmEERERA A 92
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—F——F=A=1—H 31 March 2012
17. ﬁ%(?) 17. GOODWILL (continued)
BEZHENR Impairment tests for goodwill

FEDREEEDIEAZASTERSCELE
ol R_ZE——FRR_ZT——F=4
=t—H AE2FSERMEREEZEA
EIMEREHDE

RRERS TS - BENAKRESEREER
EBEE - EREEAEDNEREEERRE

Emit/ER R ERFHEMBREENR SR
EBA - EAFURZBESREHREBHBIR

(ER B R -

EREEFETNEZERRKRMT :

EFI%
mEE
7

BEMNENXDEEERBAARRLEH T
LERROPEMEE - IEMRAEREX R L
HAERTHEBTERANERR - IERANESE
BRI ERGBBRTA - IR E R EN T 5
R ARITENERER - BEEERE - Lt
FERBHIOEMSBAEREHW IS
BHREEBREN KBNS E’\#Efﬁéfﬁ
ERRPAERA N E 2 ERRAEAE L HE
R ER E)ﬁi@—JﬂEZ%fﬁimifﬂxﬁﬂﬁ
REARTE o

Gross margin
Growth rate
Discount rate

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units identified
according to operating segment. As at 31 March 2011 and 2012, all the
goodwill is allocated to the “Personal Computer Products Distribution”
segment in Canada.

For the purposes of impairment reviews, the recoverable amount of
goodwill is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management for the purposes of impairment reviews
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated according to a constant-growth assumption based on the
expected inflation rate.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:

meEREE
Canada
operations
—E2—=
2012

9.7%

2.9% to 4%

15%

——

The budgeted gross margins were determined by management based
on past performance and its expectation for market development. The
growth rates used are largely consistent and do not exceed the industry
growth forecast. The annual discount rates are before tax and reflect
market assessments of the time value and the specific risks relating
Management believes that any reasonably
foreseeable change in any of the above key assumptions would not

to the relevant segment.

cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the recoverable amount.
Judgment is required to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash
flow projections and the changes to key assumptions can significantly
affect these cash flow projections.
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18. W% - HBERRE

]

RZE-Z£MA-A At 1 April 2010

HA Cost

ZiTERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

REHE Net book amount

“5--£=f=1-H Year ended 31 March 2011

i35

BRETE Opening net book amount
EiZEE Exchange differences
HE Additions

HE Disposals

Vil Depreciation
BREETE Closing net book amount

aNEEERAERAA 94
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

31 March 2012

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group

£6 fil

RERRE

Leasehold

BE  improvements,

THREF RERES furniture, EBERIE ERIR

Land and Plant and fixtures and RE Mouldsand  Construction- @it
buildings machinery equipment  Motor vehicles tooling in-progress Total
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000
128,566 142,848 47,997 6,829 22,892 11,597 360,729
(18,837) (100,994) (28,584) (4,878) (16,615) - (169,908)
109,729 41,854 19,413 1,951 6,277 11,597 190,821
109,729 41,854 19,413 1,951 6,277 11,597 190,821
125 1,135 43 58 148 - 1,509
- 1,004 1,749 1,404 938 9,510 14,655
- (986) @) (240) - - (1,323)
(2,677) (6,621) (2,455) (403) (882) - (13,038)
107,177 36,436 18,653 2,770 6,481 21,107 192,624
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18. W% - HBRRXRE )

SE(E)

R=2--£ZB=+-8
s
ZiERAME

BEHE
ZZ-CEZBSt-ALER
SR HE

EXER
AE

SRERFE
R=B-Z£=B=+-8

KA
ZiERAME

SHAE

31 March 2012

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
Group (continued)
28 BR-
RERRE
Leasehold
BE  improvements,
1HREF RERHE furniture, BARIA ERIE
Land and Plant and fixtures and RE Mouldsand  Construction- @it
buildings machinery equipment  Motor vehicles tooling in-progress Total
AT AT AT A7 2./ 7Er AT
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000
At 31 March 2011
Cost 128,698 135,673 49,860 6,932 23,979 21,107 366,299
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (27,521) (99,237) (31,207) (4,162) (17,498) - (178,625)
Net book amount 107,177 36,436 18,653 2,710 6,481 21,107 192,624
Year ended 31 March 2012
Opening net book amount 107,177 36,436 18,653 2,710 6,481 21,107 192,624
Exchange differences 44 378 81 4 - - 507
Additions - 9,221 3,503 2,228 207 6,071 21,230
Disposals (36,424) (1,118) (4,210) (33) - - (41,785)
Depreciation (2,535) (5,985) (2,111) (569) (1,116) - (12,316)
Impairment - (7,501) (1,033) - (1,782) - (10,266)
Closing net book amount 68,262 31,431 14,883 4,400 3,840 21178 149,994
At 31 March 2012
Cost 77,439 117,646 43,093 8,049 24,186 21178 298,491
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (9,177) (86,215) (28,210) (4,549) (20,346) - (148,497)
Net book amount 68,262 31,431 14,883 4,400 3,840 21178 149,994
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18. ¥¥ - B RXRE )

THRBFREFEINNAT :

31 March 2012

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Net book value of the land and buildings is analysed as follows:

Group

- —F——
=H=+-H =A=+—H
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$’000

MR EE 2 T RIETF Land and buildings in Hong Kong held on:
102 50F 2 Y ZIEF Leases of between 10 and 50 years 7,459 7,687

LN BB AN R 2 1EF - Buildings outside Hong Kong held on:

10E50F 24 Leases of between 10 and 50 years 60,044 98,653
506 A E 24 Leases of over 50 years 759 837
68,262 107,177

& H X H $5,863,0008 t(— & —— 4 :
4,379,000 7 7T, ) 7E §H 5 Bk 2N 72 AR % 6,953,000
BIIL(—F ——4 : 8,659,000/ L) E— R K
TR R -

RIE-——F=A=+—0 URBFEZHE
i ER= T RF 2 AR HAAEL -

RIBE-——F=A=+—0  REFENUI
BEzR@FEIEREE LN EARERERE MR
2B M E TR BAER T TE -

RZBE-——F=A=+—H #EIBEXER
ETARBRZBERETIRES -
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Depreciation expense of HK$5,363,000 (2011: HK$4,379,000) has been
charged in the cost of sales and HK$6,953,000 (2011: HK$8,659,000)
has been included in general and administrative expenses.

As at 31 March 2012, the remaining period of unexpired leases of
leasehold land in Hong Kong is 35 years.

As at 31 March 2012, buildings held outside Hong Kong mainly represent
the Group’s factory premises located at Heyuan, Guangdong Province of
Mainland China, and certain office premises located at Mainland China.

As at 31 March 2011, construction in progress mainly represented
certain factory premises and staff quarter under constructions.
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19. T HbfERRE

SENEET MR tHMERERRNEERE
MR- BREDFES T

19. LAND USE RIGHTS

31 March 2012

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating
lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed as follows:

£E
Group
—Eg—= =EE——
2012 2011
FETT FETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
R=-ZB——FmA—A At 1 April 2011/1 April 2010
—E-ZTHMA—H
B AN Cost 25,700 25,700
2T Accumulated amortisation (9,762) (9,360)
SRR E Net book amount 15,938 16,340
HYIER T FE Opening net book amount 15,938 16,340
4y Amortisation (402) (402)
HRHE Disposal during the year (4,962) —
HIR AR FE Closing net book amount 10,574 15,938
HR=A=+—8H At 31 March
B AN Cost 18,381 25,700
ESE 3 Accumulated amortisation (7,807) (9,762)
SRR E Net book amount 10,574 15,938
&5 AT Geographical analysis:
—Eg—= =ER——
=A=t+-8 =A=+-AH
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
FET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
MR EBAIMDE Outside Hong Kong, held on:
10E50F 24 Leases of between 10 and 50 years 10,403 15,750
50F LA E 2 FH) Leases of over 50 years 171 188
10,574 15,938

BNEERNFTERHE BREE - RRITRE
F o

R-FE——F=A=+—8" ' & TAREHNL
HEAREZ FEN TR EL34F ©

Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments has been included in

general and administrative expenses.

As at 31 March 2012, the remaining period of unexpired land use rights

ranges from 31 to 53 years.
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R-Z—ZFFNA—H
DN
RETR(E

AREHE

—E-—-FZA=t+-H
HFEE
HAYI AR HE
NE

55

AREHE
R=B-—%=ZA=+-H
XA

R R {E
AREHHE
—®-—#=A=+-AH
EEFE

HIT AR FHE

55

AREHHE
R=B-=f=ZA=+-H
XA

R R {E
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20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 March 2012

3L
Group
4 E BT BES
Technical Club Wat
Know-how debentures Total
FET FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 April 2010
Cost — 1,050 1,050
Accumulated impairment — (840) (340)
Net book amount — 710 710
Year ended 31 March 2011
Opening net book amount — 710 710
Additions 4,497 — 4,497
Amortisation (1,124) = (1,124)
Net book amount 8,373 710 4,083
At 31 March 2011
Cost 4,497 1,050 5,547
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (1,124) (840) (1,464)
Net book amount 8,373 710 4,083
Year ended 31 March 2012
Opening net book amount 3,373 710 4,083
Amortisation (1,124) - (1,124)
Net book amount 2,249 710 2,959
At 31 March 2012
Cost 4,497 1,050 5,547
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (2,248) (340) (2,588)
Net book amount 2,249 710 2,959
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21.

HBEARNRE

FEEMRAD - RAE

Unlisted shares, at cost

ARRZEEMBABTEHNT :

|
Company

EfARE -
Interests held directly —

Daiwa BVI Limited

BREARE -
Interests held indirectly —

PRETARAA

Chiasso Inc.

ANESERAA

Daiwa Associate Ltd

ANETERERARAA

Daiwa Distribution Holdings Limited

Elite Century Holdings Ltd.

HEFIRARAR

Cypress Electronics Limited

ANEE(PE)ERAR

Daiwa Associate (China) Limited

AL/ R
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

ABRAHE
British Virgin Islands

ABRAHE
British Virgin Islands

ABRLES
British Virgin Islands

ABRLES
British Virgin Islands

ABRRHS
British Virgin Islands

&b

Hong Kong

&
Hong Kong

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

31 March 2012

NG
Company
-F—= —F——
2012 2011
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
44,715 44,715

Particulars of significant subsidiaries are as follows:

TESEHY
Principal place
of operation

ABRAES
British Virgin Islands

]
Mainland China

&
Hong Kong

3
Hong Kong

30
Hong Kong

A

Hong Kong

&
Hong Kong

BETRARRE
Issued and fully
paid up share capital

10,000%7
US$10,000

VeI
Us$2

2T
Us$2

1800%7
US$1,800

10,000%7
US$10,000

28T

HK$2

28T
HK$2

FEREAAL
Percentage
of equity
interest held

100%

100%

100%

90%

100%

100%

100%

EEERER
Type of legal entity

ERAFAT

Limited fiability company

ERAFAT

Limited fiability company

EREFAT

Limited fiability company

BREFAR
Limited fiability company

BRELAR
Limited liability company

EREFAT

Limited fiability company

EREFAR

Limited fiability company

IRXH

Principal activities

REBR

Investment holdings

MIgEE
Sub-contract manufacturing

RARR

Investment holdings

RERR
Investment holdings

RERR

Investment holdings

HESTHEER
Manufacture of consumer
electronics

RRNE
Property holdings
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21. HBRARNRE @

AR
Company

HESARE - (F)

HRAY/ R
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Interests held indirectly — (continued)

ANEZERAR

Daiwa Associate (H.K.) Limited

ANETERAA

Daiwa Distribution Limited

ANEBERAT
Daiwa Digital Limited

BNERERAT
Daiwa Electronic Ltd.

ANIZERAR

Daiwa Industrial Limited

AMZERRAR
Daiwa Manufacturing Limited

aN2NERAT

Daiwa Maxiworld Limited

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

aNMEmEERERA A
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

100

21.

B
Principal place
of operation

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

i RER AL

ERTRBRRE Percentage
Issued and fully of equity
paid up share capital interest held
Lak100%ET 100%
Ordinary shares

HK$100
BRZEETRN

3,000,000

(i)
Non-voting

deferred shares

HK$3,000,000

(note (i)
5,000,000%7 100%
HK$5,000,000
10,0007 65%
HK$10,000
10,0007 100%
HK$10,000
500087 100%
HK$5,000
4B 100%
HKS4
100%T 100%
HK$100

EEEEER
Type of legal entity

EREEAA
Limited liability company

EREHEAT
Limited liability company

BREAAT

Limited liability company

BREEAR
Limited liability company

BREAAT
Limited liability company

BREFAH
Limited liability company

BREFAT
Limited liability company

31 March 2012

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

IBER
Principal activities

REEARRHER
RiTBEH

Provision of management
and administrative
service to group
companies

EF Ak
Distribution of electronic
components

EFmAHEH
Distribution of electronic
components

REZR

Investment holdings

RARK

Investment holdings

HESTRENRANET
ZXEERY

Manufacture of electronic
components and
manufacturing services
of electronic products

EFmakaH
Distrioution of electronic
components
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21.

HHMBARNRE®

Ad

Company

BEEARE - (F)

Interests held indirectly — (continued)

ANBETIEARAR

Daiwa Precision Industrial Ltd.

AMERERAA

Daiwa Resources Limited

AHNERERAR
Daiwa System Limited

aflgs (RR)ARAA
Daiwa Trading (Guangdong) Limited

Imtec Components Limited
BRsFARAA

Unity Electrical Industrial Ltd.
EERESTARAA

Vastpoint Imtec Electronics Limited

IRENERETREERAR
Beijing Daiwa Vastpoint Electronics
Technology Ltd.

HEET (TR)ARAR
China Faith Electronics (Heyuan) Ltd.

REETETARAA
Dongguan Gosmos Electronics Ltd.

HARAY/ ALY
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

&
Hong Kong

&
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

&
Hong Kong

(30
Hong Kong

&
Hong Kong

&
Hong Kong

il
Mainland China

]
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

21.

TERERY
Principal place
of operation

3
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

i
Hong Kong

i
Hong Kong

&
Hong Kong

&
Hong Kong

A
Hong Kong

]
Mainland China

]
Mainland China

e
Mainland China

31 March 2012

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

fRERDL
Percentage
of equity
interest held

ERTRARRE
Issued and fully
paid up share capital

100007 100%
HK$10,000

5,007 100%
HKS$5,000

4% 100%
HKS$4

4% 100%
HK$4

10,0007 100%
HK$10,000

2,000,000 70 100%
HKS2,000,000

1007 100%
HK$100

RAINGE e 100%
800,000 ARH

Registered and
paid up capital
RMB800,000

HRREAER 100%
1,200,000%70

Registered and
paid up capital
US§1,200,000

AMERARK 100%
36,420,00070
BEBRARK
31,699,59070
Registered capital
RMB36,420,000
Paid up capital
RMB31,599,590

EEERER
Type of legal entity

BREEAF
Limited fiability company

BRREAF
Limited fiability company

BRREAF
Limited liability company

BREEAA
Limited fiability company

EREFAR

Limited fiability company

EREFAT

Limited fiability company

EREFAT

Limited fiability company

NEEERAAA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

HEESA NG
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

AR ERAAA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

IBER
Principal activities

hRRE

Procurement of materials

REAR

Investment holdings

EhTENES
Trading of computer
components

RERRRNERE
Investment holdings and
property holding

RARR

Investment holdings

HERBHELED

Manufacture of electric wire

EF ALY
Distribution of electronic
components

ERg 1
Distribution of electronic
components

WESTHEER
Manufacture of consumer
electronics

FTERAERE
Contract electronic
manufacture service
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21.

HHBARNRE®

Ad

Company

BESARE -(5)

Interests held indirectly — (continued)

ANTEE (L8)ERAR
Daiwa Component (Shanghal) Ltd.

AHTEE (R ERAR
Daiwa Component (Shenzhen) Ltd.

aNET (TF)ARAA
Daiwa Electronics (Heyuan) Co. Ltd.

A (ER)ZTIERRAT
Daiwa (Zhaoging) Electronics Industrial
Limited

REEEYERARAT
Dongguan Wafer Semi-Conductor
Co., Ltd.

RENETHE(RIERAR
Maxi World Technology (Shenzhen)
Limited

aMEEERER QA 102
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

HRAY/ RIS
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

il
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

i
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

b
Mainland China

21.

TELERY
Principal place
of operation

il
Mainland China

b
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

b
Mainland China

BRTRBRRE
Issued and fully
paid up share capital

A REAER
200,000%T

Registered and
paid up capital
US8200,000

A REAER
2,000,000/&7

Registered and
paid up capital
HK$2,000,000

A REAER
3,600,000%7

Registered and
paid up capital
US$3,600,000

A REAER
3,308,000%7

Registered and
paid up capital
US$3,308,000

AR, 712,00057
BAIA761,168,543
A

Registered capital
HK$71,712,000
Paid up capital
HK$61,168,543

A REAER
300,000%7

Registered and paid up
capital US$300,000

fsREBAL

Percentage

of equity

interest held

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

EEEREA
Type of legal entity

ERERALA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

ERERALA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

ERERARA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

HERERALA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

ERERALA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

ERERALA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

31 March 2012

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

IBER
Principal activities

EF AL
Distribution of electronic
components

EF &AL
Distribution of electronic
components

aNETEREERBR
HESTHEER

Contract electronic
manufacture service
and manufacture of
consumer electronics

HEEFTEN
Manufacture of electronic
components

HEEF RN
Manufacture of electronic
components

EFTEMHES
Distribution of electronic
components
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21.

HHMBARNRE®

Ad

Company

BEEARE - (F)

Interests held indirectly — (continued)

anE% (TF)BRAR
Unity Industrial (Heyuan) Ltd.

EEREEF(RIARAR
Vastpoint Imtec Electronics (Shenzhen)
Ltd.

RARTES(LE)RRAA
Vastpoint Imtec Electronics (Shanghai)
Ltd.

Daiwa Distribution (Alberta) Inc.

Daiwa Distribution (B.C.) Inc.

Daiwa Distribution (Ontario) Inc.

Daiwa Holdings Inc.

HARAY/ ALY
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

i
Mainland China

Gl
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

JIEYNHEfE
Alberta, Canada

NEREBFHaE
British Columbia, Ganada

MEARAKE
Ontario, Canada

MERZABE
Ontario, Canada

21.

TERERY
Principal place
of operation

]
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

]
Mainland China

JIEIN

Canada

JIEIN

Canada

nex

Canada

nex

Canada

31 March 2012

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

ERTRARRE
Issued and fully
paid up share capital

HRRESER
2,050,000 %7

Registered and paid up
capital US$2,050,000

HRRESER
2,000,007

Registered and paid up
capital HK$2,000,000

HRRESER
30000057

Registered and paid up
capital US$300,000

12017
CAD120

300,000/
GAD300,000

700,000 1070
CGAD700,000

22301517
CAD223,015

fRERDL
Percentage
of equity
interest held

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

EEERER
Type of legal entity

N2 ERAAA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

NERERRAA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

RS NG
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

EREFAT

Limited fiability company

EREFAT

Limited fiability company

EREFAT

Limited fiability company

EREFAT

Limited fiability company

IBER
Principal activities

REERER

Manufacture of electric wire

EFnBtEH
Distribution of electronic
components

ERg e
Distribution of electronic
components

HERDHBRERR
2724

Sales and distribution of
computer goods and
electronic goods

HERDHERERR
2724

Sales and distribution of
computer goods and
electronic goods

HERAHERERR
EfEm

Sales and distribution of
computer goods and
electronic goods

RERR

Investment holdings
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21.

22.

HIE A RRIRE @)

Biet

(i)

(il

ERFANARRZHMBEAR - DARRES
RAGEERERREAEEARNFEELE
EZER AFELAKEABNEEFEZ
MERR ERBEMHBRARNZERN &
EZERABBRITE °

ERERIELERNLEREEREE TR
EEENE  RIFEBRBREESESE
100,000,000,000,000 % 7T

BE-_ZT——Ffg-_FT——F=A=+—H
EFEEMNBARYERAERTZEEER
x o

BeENTER

FREDFE

MBARKIZREE 2L RRMNFBENT

21.

22.

Net book amount

31 March 2012

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

Notes:

(i)

(i

(il

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Company’s directors and the Group’s management,
principally contributed the results or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would result in
particulars of excessive length.

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, and are
not entitled to any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of ordinary
shares.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time during
the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

&M
Group
—E—— e
2012 2011
FETT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

Details of the associated company, which is a limited liability company

established and operating in Japan, are as follows:

RAERES
ERITRBEER BoLLERRE
Issued and Percentage
£z fully paid of equity FEXEK
Name up capital interest held Principal activity
AMFERA 1 23,400,000 H 47% SHE R BUES E R R B T AP M TT s 1

Daiwa Sound Company Limited

(“DSC”)

BB R BN A FR AR BREBFEE

=G

ENMBEEERABERQA
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited
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YEN23,400,000

elements and components

years, resulting in its negative net asset values.

Trading and manufacturing of speaker

The associated company has been continuously loss making in recent
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31 March 2012

RZZBE—=—F=A=+—H0  ZRBENAS
EE-—SZEERENASRB(EREKND)
{R¥E 455,000,000 27T (4 4 38,840,000 7T ) -
WHEH 3% 2 BFHREFHRE -

W—_ZT——F=ZA=+—8 BA%£BEEH
ZRBEH  RBREF BN —EA
302,000 £t (%4 2,346,000 /8 70) KRR E A
BEHRRTAEE  ZEERRERARFHE
W WRZ A KIETE 18 2 BT NF IR T EURER -

R-F——F=ZA=+—8 SBEEIESEA
AL ECHEECEEEREERRERTIR
17 EREBZETREE(KFE28) ©

23. AtHELREE 23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
&8
Group
—=2—= —_F——
2012 2011
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HA ) Beginning of the year 387 305
HR 38 N Additions during the year 15,307 =
(B18R) et FEE AER Net (loss)/gain transferred to equity (935) 82
HIZR End of the year 14,759 387
A ESREERE Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:
£
Group
—E—— =hgle——
2012 2011
FRET FEr
HK$’000 HK$’000
EWESH Listed securities:
RiEES — B Equity securities — Hong Kong,
LA TT AR B AL denominated in HK$ 302 387
BZEEERREGELTREA) : Key management insurance (unlisted investments):
REBEHNZATE  UETAE Fair value of insurance contract, denominated in
B us$ 14,457 —
14,759 387
LETEAEMISER Market value of listed securities 302 387

As at 31 March 2012, the insurance contract represented a life insurance
plan with investment elements relating to a key management personnel
of the Group. The total sum insured is US$5,000,000 (approximately
HK$38,840,000) with an annual minimum guaranteed return of 3%.

As at 31 March 2012, if the Group withdrew from the insurance
contract, the account value, net of a surrender charge of US$302,000
(approximately HK$2,346,000), will be refunded to the Group. The
amounts of surrender charge decreases over time and is no longer
required from the 16th year of contract conclusion onwards.

At 31 March 2012, the key management insurance contracts classified
as available-for-sale is pledged as securities for certain of the Group’s
borrowings (Note 28).
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24, FE

0] EFERAABRRBIEENBR ZHER (i)
AN 49 /41,188,556,000 8 L(=Z T — —4F ¢

1,536,622,000757T) °

(ii) H % E 7R E A3,435,0008 (=& — — (ii)
4 :2,482,000%7T) « BEBRERFIER ZHE

ERAR -

(iii) FEREZEHNT :

REA—H
FERBERE (AT 8)
AR 8

R=A=+—8

aMEEERERAXA 106
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24. INVENTORIES

Trading merchandise
Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Inventories — gross
Provision for impairment

Inventories — net

31 March 2012

&5
Group

—E—= —EF——
2012 2011
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
132,780 110,325
116,021 90,426
7,442 23,251
7,740 6,129
263,983 230,131
(1,997) (2,524)
261,986 227,607

Notes:
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in
cost of sales in the income statement amounted to approximately
HK$1,188,556,000 (2011: HK$1,536,622,000).
Direct write-off of inventories during the year amounting to HK$3,435,000
(2011: HK$2,482,000) has been included in cost of sales in the income
statement.
(i) Movement on the provision for inventories is as follows:
£H
Group
—E—= —T—
2012 2011
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2,524 25,417
Provision for inventory impairment (Note 8) 1,458 =
Written off against provision during the year (1,985) (22,893)
At 31 March 1,997 2,624




B 7% R R KT 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

—FE——F=H=1+—H 31 March 2012
25. BREXREREWEE 25. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES
£8
Group
—F—= —F——
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
JEW & 2R BRTE Trade receivables 186,895 221,427
OB R R RRIBRE 2 Less: provision for impairment (2,015) (2,447)
184,880 218,980
FEWE IR Notes receivable 22,629 35,766
207,509 254,746
Hia# - Note:
(a) AEEZRKEERBZERMENL T &K (a) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in
REAL the following currencies:
%5
Group
—_g—= —F—
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT HK$ 39,700 57,685
AR RMB 43,933 80,078
EM USs$ 81,875 60,063
mEXRT CAD 21,387 23,601
186,895 221,427
Y EERERERL QAR ERE - The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values.
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25. BEWEX£REREREZE »
HiaE - (&)

AEH 2 RANHERTHRRS  BRE—R
HB=tREATR - REZARETE ZEK
ERERIA RO

ER 77

(b)

R—_ZE——_F=ZA=+—H' 44
87,232,000 T 2 EUW & ERIB(=ZF — —
4 : 60,291,000/ 7T ) £€ B i) H 1B 37 £& 5 R
B o WWERIEP R Z ERRE H R 8 R ALk
KB R o b5 R NGKIRE HIE R E &
HBRER D ITZA T ¢

TSR EN R EERBNEEEE
TEBSERME TR RNBEERE
TRERERIEARBRNEEZE - BEY
77 B EHE R AR

R-T——F=A=+—08 BREEREHE
2,015,000 JL(= & — — F : 2,447,000/
TR BT E REEREREEHEHE -
18 B 58 18 0 8 Wk = 23R B BE A TR R A A
BERERNEE o W ERBGRAERERIT ¢

BR—E=1TX

A

aNEEERAERAA
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31 March 2012

25. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note: (continued)
(b) Majority of the Group’s sales are made on open account, with credit terms
generally ranging from 30 days to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables by the dates of invoices is as follows:

£5

Group
—EgE—= e
2012 2011
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Less than 60 days 127,438 156,768
60 days to 120 days 22,465 43,017
Over 120 days 36,992 21,642
186,895 221,427

At 31 March 2012, trade receivables of approximately HK$87,232,000
(2011: HK$60,291,000) were past due but not considered to be impaired
because these mainly relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these

trade receivables by the days of overdue repayment is as follows:
55
Group
—Eg—= —F—
2012 2011
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Less than 60 days 45,742 35,745
60 days to 120 days 10,010 11,469
Over 120 days 31,480 13,077
87,232 60,291

The credit quality of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired
has been assessed by reference to historical information about the
counterparty default rates and taking into account the credit insurance
coverage. The existing counterparties do not have significant defaults in
the past.

At 31 March 2012, trade receivables of approximately HK$2,015,000
(2011: HK$2,447,000) were impaired and fully provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers which are in unexpected
difficult economic situations. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

58
Group
—g—= —_F—
2012 2011
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
Over 120 days 2,015 2,447
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—F——F=HA=+—H 31 March 2012

25. BWEXEREERERERE 2 25. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Hiat - (&) Note: (continued)
(© i L A5 P T (B A B B T - (c) Movement on the provision for trade receivables is as follows:
£H
Group
—B2—= —T—
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
R A —8 At 1 April 2,447 1,467
FEU & S BRI R B Provision for trade receivable impairment 604 2,285
FRNF|BAREREIH Receivables written off during the year as
JFE S S AR TE I SH uncollectable (1,036) (1,305)
R=A=+—8” At 31 March 2,015 2,447
(d) W EE (d) Notes receivable
AREBHERE  BUEREZREBENESR The carrying amounts of notes receivable approximate their fair values
ERAFE R=-T—=-F=A=t+—HME due to their short maturity. As at 31 March 2012, all the notes receivable
BRERIRFE=FZF B W FRRITER represent bank acceptance notes issued by third parties with average
MmEHEEHA B120KA(ZF——4F : 120 maturity of within 120 days (2011: 120 days), and are all denominated in
AR E2BEEHRAREK - RMB.
=+ =
26. ARRE - RERHEMEWNK 26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
by | RECEIVABLES
£H AT
Group Company
—E—_ e —_E—— —ZF——
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FHEIT FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
mE Current:
TEFOE Prepayments 15,500 17,649 161 134
HEZS Rental deposits 17 670 - —
H A fEGRIE Other receivables 18,855 19,540 - =
34,372 37,859 161 134
R ¢ Non-Current:
HEZS Rental deposits 621 — - —
34,993 37,859 161 134

109 eNEmEERAER QA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Bt 1% iR R M 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

—F —#-Ff=1—H 31 March 2012
27. RERBELEEY 27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
58 AF]
Group Company

—_s—= - —E—= —T—
2012 2011 2012 2011
FHET FHET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RITHERR Cash at banks 100,485 99,582 81 439
e Cash on hand 4,959 4,798 - -
105,444 104,380 81 439

ReRBEEEYMATIEE BB Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

3L | AT
Group Company

—ZE—_ Ehge—— —E—= ===
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FHET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT HK$ 23,676 25,109 81 439
AR RMB 40,928 15,024 - —
T Us$ 30,881 53,022 - =
MEKXT CAD 9,888 11,023 - —
Hh Others 71 202 - =
105,444 104,380 81 439
SRITERRES B RITERZF B H R BEEF Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
BIA - EB 7 IRITEBRTHAREFZRE S deposit rates. The Group’s cash and bank balance denominated in RMB
BERA M ETRBEERNNRT EBEANAR are deposited with banks in the Mainland China. The conversion of these
W BRGNS 5 3 TS BE B 0 19 55 4 IR AR B B A9 46 RMB-denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance
[EFRTE o of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of

foreign exchange control promulgated by the Government of the People’s
Republic of China.
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28. f&&

mE
REHERITE R
RITEFTER
R—FREHZ
RITEK
BB —FRIBREE
BEREBERZRITER

R—FREHZ
HA B 5K
MEHERE

et
Bia—F RNz
HA B 5K
REMERRE

28. BORROWINGS

Current

Short-term bank borrowings

Trust receipts bank loans

Portion of bank borrowings repayable within one
year

Portion of bank borrowings due for repayment after
one year which contains a repayment on demand
clause

Portion of other borrowings repayable
within one year

Finance lease liabilities

Non-current
Portion of other borrowings repayable
after one year
Finance lease liabilities

31 March 2012

&m
Group

—=2—= —_F——
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
19,430 18,000
167,473 178,372
18,479 29,080
49,424 53,512
3,242 —
1,136 459
259,184 279,423
6,211 —
1,250 684
7,461 684
266,645 280,107
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28. EE#»

EAEEIREZ BRI

T

—FA
—FE-_FR
—FERFA
AEMNE

fEERMEERA T EREAMR

BT
T
ARE

aNEEERAERAA
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EERHMBER N

Within 1 year

Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years

Over 5 years

HK$
us$
RMB

31 March 2012

BORROWINGS (continued)

Disregarding the repayment demand clause, the maturity of borrowings
is as follows:

55
Group

- —F——
2012 2011
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
209,760 225,911
21,452 18,349
24,762 35,847
10,671 —
266,645 280,107

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:

£5

Group
—_ZE—— —F——
2012 2011
FET TFET
HK$°000 HK$000
130,666 225,947
133,335 54,160
2,644 —
266,645 280,107
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28.

F=H=1—H

B8 @

REERARBEEFM X g5 8 =T

31 March 2012

BORROWINGS (continued)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to changes in interest rates and
the weighted average effective interest rates at the balance sheet date
are as follows:

£H
Group
—_E—— —F—
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
— FEEX — at floating rates 266,645 280,107
—=E—= —F——
2012 2011
BT E BT Em
HK$ uss HK$ US$
RITIEFEERK Trust receipts bank loans 2.20% 2.20% 1.96% 2.01%
$RITREMER Bank and other borrowings 2.59% 1.07% 2.25% —
REREaE Finance lease liabilities 1.82% - 1.50% =
RZE——F=A=+—H BRTREHEHER As at 31 March 2012, except for the finance lease liabilities and certain

*¥@%%m3m2mmﬁn2ﬁﬁ% PSE
TEAEFAEEELAHEESREE (FHE
%ﬁﬁéﬂﬁ%ﬁi’%ﬁﬁ.ﬁzs){ﬁmﬁﬁﬁl\ CFTAEER
BRI o

RZZB——F=A=+—H% BTREMAE
BES - REZ EMERD REER

RZF——FR=F——F=A=+—8 M
AESRAKEERAFERT

SEREHEREREINWT

bank loans and trust receipts bank loans amounting to HK$133,672,000
which are secured by certain available-for-sale financial assets as set out
in note 23 to the financial statements, all borrowings are unsecured.

As at 31 March 2011, all of the Group’s borrowings except for the
finance lease liabilities were unsecured.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate their fair
values.

The Group’s finance lease obligations were analysed as follows:

Group

—_E—— —E——
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

HEAEEREE Total minimum lease payments
— —FR’ — Within 1 year 1,169 474
— —FERFRA — Between one and five years 1,266 693
2,435 1,167
i AR EZ RRIMEER Less: Future finance charges (49) (24)
2,386 1,143

13 AaNEmEERAERAR2A
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—F _—#-F-1-H 31 March 2012
28. ‘ﬁ%ﬁ(%} 28. BORROWINGS (continued)
REHEEEMNHREITET : The present value of finance lease liabilities is analysed as follows:
£8
Group
—g—= —_F—
2012 2011
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
—FR Within one year 1,136 459
—FERFA Between one and five years 1,250 684
2,386 1,143
29. FE(FEXERE 29. TRADE PAYABLES
AEBHEEEALERS  R—KE=1+X Payment terms with majority of the suppliers are on open account.
ERTRKRe Certain suppliers grant credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days.
R EERIBZRERDITAT : The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:
£8
Group
—_Z2—— —F——
2012 2011
FETT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
AN Less than 60 days 136,466 156,947
ATRE—BZTX 60 days to 120 days 4,602 25,851
BA—A_-TX Over 120 days 2,312 3,297
143,380 186,095
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—F——F=HA=+—H 31 March 2012
29. ENEERE@® 29. TRADE PAYABLES (continued)
JEfT & SERIBIZA T E®E AR - Trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:
£8
Group

—=2—= —_F——
2012 2011
FETT FETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT HKS$ 28,904 14,146
AR RMB 13,444 9,876
ETT Us$ 94,388 153,148
meAxT CAD 6,644 8,243
HAh Others - 682
143,380 186,095

30. ENEAREMENKIE 30. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

% A7
Group Company

—ZE—— Ehgle—— —_E—— —E——
2012 2011 2012 2011
FETT FET FET FETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
e E & RIEAT Accrued salaries and bonuses 11,116 10,487 — =
TEUR IR Receipts in advance 6,030 8,313 - =
Bt EEER Accrued operating expenses 7,063 7,181 196 1,015
Bt EEER Construction fee payables 389 881 — —
E AR Other payables 1,305 1,251 — =
25,903 28,113 196 1,015
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31. ELEFREBH 31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX
EEAEEFAEREAERBEEEHEEARIES Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
B - MIRERIE S KR — B Bk s - Al legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
ARSI EEREREMSH A B EEE liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
e AHEERBERLEZESR  BEEEZE authority. The balances shown in the consolidated balance sheet are,
HBET - after appropriate offsetting, as follows:

£E
Group

—g—= —_F—
2012 2011
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BIEIHE E Deferred income tax assets 514 1,086
FEERIEEE Deferred income tax liabilities (1,652) (1,885)
RER B FEBE Net deferred income tax liabilities (1,138) (799)

EERIEREEEIT The movement on net deferred income tax account is as follows:

£
Group
—E—= ===
2012 2011
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
iR Beginning of the year (799) (950)
ERBER(ZHE), iR (Charged)/credited to the income statement

(HizE11) (Note 11) (339) 151
EAZR End of the year (1,138) (799)

aMEEERAERRAA 116
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31.

EEMER 2

FREEHRREERBEZEE (HBFE i
[ 2 SRR AT

31 March 2012

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities prior to offsetting of
balances within the same taxation jurisdiction is as follows:

ELEHEEE Deferred tax assets
HE
Tax losses
—=2—= —_F——
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
R Beginning of the year 2,123 1,798
FERER () Rk (Charged)/credited to the income statement (481) 325
HIZR End of the year 1,642 2,123
EEHEAE Deferred tax liabilities
IEBRIERFE
MEBIE Accelerated tax wiE
Withholding tax depreciation Total
=t =EE== —Eg—= =EE== —Eg—= ===
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FAET FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
REA—HB At 1 April 1,032 423 1,890 2,325 2,922 2,748
FERERTHES Charged/(credited) to the
(R2fR) income statement - 609 (142) (435) (142) 174
R=A=+—H At 31 March 1,032 1,032 1,748 1,890 2,780 2,922

BT TR IE & BE Ty EE A 1% 2R 1] B 45 FE SR Bt i A1
BENMEBHENZAR RS ERIEEE
{ERERR  ZN S B0 A& 3t R 51118 49 88,379,000
B IT(ZZ — — 4 : 62,003,000 7T ) i R IE
JERIE & E#21,207,0008 T(ZZT —— 4 :
14,878,000 4 7t ) + 1t 25 1 18 /&5 48 ] 4K 35 1% 2Kk
MERBEN R =_FT—=—F=A=+—8"
R HIBEEELT77,934,0008 T BR =
—ZEZZE—tFHEABR ZZT——F:
53,968,000 B TR —T——& — T — N FHMH
fE%) > MERT10,445,0008 T(ZF——4 :
8,035,000 7 7t ) Al AJ % R HA 4K 8 2R 2 FE AR Bt
i I

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of approximately HK$21,207,000 (2011: HK$14,878,000)
in respect of accumulated losses amounting to approximately
HK$88,379,000 (2011: HK$62,003,000) that can be carried forward
against future taxable income. As at 31 March 2012, accumulated tax
loss amounting to approximately HK$77,934,000 is expiring in 2013 to
2017 (2011: approximately HK$53,968,000, expiring in 2012 to 2016),
while the remaining balance of approximately HK$10,445,000 can be
carried forward indefinitely to offset against future taxable income (2011:
HK$8,035,000).
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32. BAX — EERAQTFE 32. SHARE CAPITAL — GROUP AND COMPANY
—E—— ==
2012 2011
R&HOEE HE &mEE [EkEN
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
I FHT TR FHT
’000 HK$°000 '000 HK$’000

JERE ¢ Authorised:

LR EREE0.10487T Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000

BETREAR Issued and fully paid:

LR ZAREE0.108 7T Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
H397 Beginning of the year 303,944 30,394 303,944 30,394
IT{ERREAEE MEE/THIPL(D  Issue of shares upon exercise of

(HtE () warrants (note (i) 11,446 1,145 = =

AR End of the year 315,390 31,539 303,944 30,394

HiaF - Note:

(i) REBEE-_Z——F=A=+—HItFE " &£ (i) During the year ended 31 March 2012, a total of 11,446,186 warrants
11,446,186 X R AR HEEE W 1T AR were utilised to subscribe for 11,446,186 shares of the Company at an
11,446,186 & f& 17 + KB 4 A& 4,579,000 aggregate consideration of approximately HK$4,579,000.

PBTT ©
R-E——F=A=1+—HILFE  RER During the year ended 31 March 2011, no warrants were utilised to
RS HESE B 1T AR AR QA RIARD subscribe for the shares of the Company.
33. FAMRREIL 33. WARRANTS
BETREE HHADNYE
REBE 240 Utilised Lapsed LIPS

BT EH AT R Subscription  Beginning of during during End of

Date of grant Exercisable period price the year the year the year the year

“ZTt+F-A=t=H “ETtF-A=f+=HZ

“I-——F-A=t=H
28 January 2007 23 January 2007 to 22 January 2012 HK$0.40 11,987,089 (11,446,186) (540,903) -
BEEx—-_E-——_F£=HA=+—BILtEE" During the year ended 31 March 2012, a total of 11,446,186 warrants were
11,446,186 1% 2 A% # if 2 ﬂ' B AR utilised to subscribe for 11,446,186 shares of the Company at an aggregate

E§11,446,186 AT 2B @R B4 A consideration of approximately HK$4,579,000.

4,579,000 AT ©

HE—Z—F=HA=+—HI4E - #4&E% During the year ended 31 March 2011, no warrants were utilised.

ARIERE AT ©
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34. f#& 34. RESERVES
(a) £5 (a) Group
e
SREE
BfhRfE
Available-
BARE g% EE R for-sale
(A (i) BERE (it (ii) financial
Capital Capital R Statutory assets RERF
reserve redemption Exchange reserve revaluation Retained L
(Note (i)) reserve reserve (Note (ii)) reserve profits Total
TAT TET TET FAT TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ2——F As 1 April 2011
mA—H 41,201 1,402 13,534 90 245 69,137 125,609
KEERH Profit for the year - - - - - 8,786 8,786
INEBE Exchange translations - - (1,806) - - - (1,806)
AHHESREE  Farr value losses on
AT {EES available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - (935) - (935)
&S Dividend - - - - - (3,154) (3,154)
RZZ--f& At 31 March 2012
=A=1+-H 41,201 1,402 11,728 90 (690) 74,769 128,500
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34. f#E=)

34. RESERVES (continued)

31 March 2012

(a) SB8 (&) (a) Group (continued)
e
SREE
BfhRfE
Available-
BARE g% EERE for-sale
(B () B (it (i) financial
Capital Capital HaGE Statutory assets REEF
reserve redemption Exchange reserve revaluation Retained @t
(Note (i)) reserve reserve (Note (ii)) reserve profits Total
TET AT FAT TET TET FET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ-TF As 1 April 2010
mA—AH 41,201 1,402 11,411 90 163 60,943 115,210
REE R Profit for the year - - - - - 8,194 8,194
JhEBE Exchange translations - - 2,123 - - - 2,123
AHHESHEE  Fair value gains on
ATERH available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - 82 - 82
RoB—-% At 31 March 2011
=A=1+-H 41,201 1,402 18,534 90 245 69,137 125,609
et - Note:

0] NEBZERNEFERBADRETZ
BHNEEREBRER—ANNEEE
BHEETARAMME R ARA
AEMEZEZH  MER=FZTZT
F=A=t+—BHRFEERNRAHIR
& AN T 1B 2= A A9 & 82 51,594,000
BT °

(ii) BRI B R B 2R E B A
BAUARBHEARZBERE MR

aMEEERAERAXA 120
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(i

Capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company
and the nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries
transferred to the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation
in 1994, plus the credit of HK$51,594,000 from share capital as
a result of a reduction of the Company’s share capital took place

during the year ended 31 March 2000.

Statutory reserve of a subsidiary in Mainland China can be utilised
to offset future losses or increase in capital of the subsidiary.
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34. B

(b)

34.

PN

R-ZE——4 At 1 April 2011
mA—H

NEEFRF Profit for the year

R-T—=F At 31 March 2012
=HA=+—H

RZZT—TF At 1 April 2010
MmA—H

NG N A Profit for the year

R=-ZE——F At 31 March 2011
=RA=t-H

Kt -

(i)

ARBRZHBAARBAEER
— NN FEEBFARRAZETZR
P TE{E A AR 2 Daiwa BVI Limited
BEETLTBREENBAREESF
EMEZ=8  MER=_TZTTF
= A=+—BWKREERE H R
7N TE B M &= A K B R 51,594,000 7
=

REBREE-NN-FREE - &
ABBA DK T RE - R B T8
RERER MRS - AR
#RAP DK - 40 () 2D K & T BE LR HAE
BRIz BEBK()EEFERRE
BEREBITRARBRHE 2 B -

31 March 2012

RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company

BB
BB R FiE (&L (i)
Capital Contributed REBAEF

redemption surplus Retained st
reserve (Note (i) profits Total
FET FET FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,402 72,309 18,016 91,727
- - 16,487 16,487
1,402 72,309 34,503 108,214
1,402 72,309 18,003 91,714
— — 13 13
1,402 72,309 18,016 91,727

Note:

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued ordinary shares of Daiwa BVI Limited and
the value of net assets of its underlying subsidiaries pursuant to
a group reorganisation in 1994, plus the credit of HK$51,594,000
from share capital as a result of a reduction of the Company’s
share capital taken place during the year ended 31 March 2000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition
that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii)
the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.
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35. EFRERER 35. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS
(a) BB RANESETHEAZEREF (a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash used in
EAR operations
b < —F——
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
R 55 A ) Profit before income tax 15,951 14,659
PR Adjustments for:
L EWA Interest income (796) (73)
T B X Interest expense 6,860 5,239
& {50 P AR 6 Amortisation of land use rights 402 402
Y% - MR RFRIEITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12,316 13,038
Hth A Amortisation of other intangible assets 1,124 1,124
& UL & S AR IE R (B Impairment of trade receivables 604 2,285
EEREREE Provision for impairment of inventories 1,458 —
EFEERE Direct write-down of inventories 3,435 2,482
Vs - e RERERE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 10,266 =
& TR R - % - Gain on disposals of land use rights, property,
W2 R wh e 2 W plant and equipment (41,941) (90)
9,679 39,066
KEESET : Changes in working capital:
FE Inventories (39,272) 5,838
FEW & 22 BRTE I JE W 2 1R Trade and notes receivables 46,071 (46,137)
JERFRIE - e R EMEW  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
HIE 2,866 (11,480)
FEf- & ZERRTIE Trade payables (43,277) (73,246)
FEST & A R E At FE A 508 Accruals and other payables (2,210) (148)
KREEBEAZERE Cash used in operations (26,143) (86,107)

(b)

EefRERERA HELHER (b)
K BBERRENA

BRESR

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposals of land use rights, and property, plant and

1F equipment comprise:
—E—= =EE——
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BREDVFE Net book amount 46,747 1,323
HE T E AR - W Gain on disposals of land use rights, and property,
78 Rk e plant and equipment 41,941 90
HE T H{E A - W Proceeds from disposals of land use rights, and
W2 KRBTSO property, plant and equipment 88,688 1,413

48 %
8
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36. REFESZEMIA 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
REFELEBzRZRERE S 2ot TEEmEWNT : The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

£8
Group
—=—=
2012
At E
SRMEE
Available-
for-sale fEEREWFIE
financial Loans and e
THEE Financial assets assets receivables Total
FETT FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
AEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 14,759 — 14,759
e EEIRTE KL EWERE  Trade and notes receivables - 207,509 207,509
e & H b UK Deposits and other receivables — 19,493 19,493
RERBFSEEY Cash and cash equivalents - 105,444 105,444
14,759 332,446 347,205
SEas
RS A
Financial
liabilities
at amortised e
THEE Financial liabilities cost Total
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
e & AR 1E Trade payables 143,380 143,380
BE Borrowings 266,645 266,645
e B A I E At FE A< 5K Accruals and other payables 19,873 19,873
429,898 429,898

123 eNEmEERAER QA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



B 7% ¥R 3R N R

—E———#F=H=+—H

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2012

aENEEERAR
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

A

AN

Al

124

36. REFS Sz I A% 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
3]
Group
—F——
2011
AT S
Available-
for-sale &5 RFEWIE
financial Loans and ®’E
THEE Financial assets assets receivables Total
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AR EeREE Available-for-sale financial assets 387 — 387
JEW S ERTBREWEE  Trade and notes receivables = 254,746 254,746
Ze R E A EKGK Deposits and other receivables = 20,210 20,210
HekBE2EEY Cash and cash equivalents = 104,380 104,380
387 379,336 379,723
Ea =N
RS AR
Financial
liabilities
at amortised ®’E
THEE Financial liabilities cost Total
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEfT & K ARIA Trade payables 186,095 186,095
BE Borrowings 280,107 280,107
&R R E AR Accruals and other payables 19,800 19,800
486,002 486,002
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31 March 2012

36. REEESZEMIAw® 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
AT
Company
—_E2—— —F——
2012 2011
FETT FETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEE—EEREWE Financial assets — loans and receivables
RERREEED Cash and cash equivalents 81 439
SEAE  REBHERE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
FEST & FA R E i FE AT 3R Accruals and other payables 196 1,015
37. &L 37. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(a) BRI (a) Capital commitments

R_E——FR=_T——F=A=+—
B AEER L RIEFRE A AE D

At 31 March 2012 and 2011, the Group’s capital commitment in
respect of land and buildings were as follows:

T~
£H
Group
—E—= —E——
2012 2011
FHET F&T
HK$°000 HK$’000
BRI AEREHR 2R Contracted but not provided for - 63
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===

37. A= 37. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(b) EEHN RS

%:%—:E&:%——¢EHE+—
B - SR T RIEF AR 2 &8
Wi EXZEERNERERED

(b) Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2012 and 2011, the future aggregate minimum lease
payments in respect of land and buildings under non-cancellable
operating leases were as follows:

I
£@
Group
—Eg—= ==
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
F—FA Not later than one year 4,952 2,293
EFEERFA Later than one year and not later than five years 4,963 4,704
9,915 6,997
ERmMs SEZEERN—RKRAEH— Generally, the Group’s operating leases are for terms of one to
EZRHE o five years.

%:%*‘i&:%**iiﬂz+*
CARIERBEARZ AN o

R-_ZE——F=ZA=+—8 ' £@BKEAQ
AR BEEARZHAAE -

38. FHAEALRS

MZT—=—F=H=+—H ' Leading Trade
Limited 52 China Capital Holdings Investment
Limited D Al #EB AR R F]19.32% (T ——4 :
20.04%) £ 33.98% (= ZF — —4F : 31.14%) &
& - ?EﬂﬂFsﬁ"ﬂiﬁEE“T%%%‘J?%}%?&E&B%
gk AT - IR RRARERAL -

W$EI&EIEMEAEZEH&EiEL
%E&T%@ﬁ%*ﬁm%%ﬂﬂgﬁﬁ
ﬁiﬁwE&&Zﬁ%M\ C R AREE T
FRE|H HW@K%@’M%E%K%E%E
BEANL - BREEALRAIAZEARERE -

BB SRR AL SO BT OB A L AR -
AEERIEA LR AR LB T 0 E AR
BALR A RBIEA LR 5 E S0 A BT
mF :
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38.

The Company did not have significant commitments as at 31
March 2012 and 2011.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group and the Company have no
significant contingent liabilities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2012, Leading Trade Limited and China Capital Holdings
Investment Limited owned 19.32% (2011: 20.04%) and 33.98% (2011:
31.14%) of the Company’s shares respectively. These companies are
under the control of the Company’s directors, Mr. Lau Tak Wan and
Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky, who are collectively regarded as the ultimate
controlling parties.

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group or any
member of its key management personnel or their close family members
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant influence over
the parties in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa,
or where the Group and the parties are subject to common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions
entered into in the ordinary course of business between the Group
and its related parties and the balances arising from related party
transactions in addition to the related party information shown elsewhere
in the financial statements.
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38. EBREALXRZ®)

(a)

(b)

31 March 2012

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

HEREALTZRS (a) Transactions with related parties

Group
—=2—= —_F——
2012 2011
i3 FET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000

HHE THE QA Sales to an associated company () = 1,968

NEEHERSH Operating lease rental paid to 361 Alden Inc.

361 Alden Inc. (i) 1,358 1,408
NESFEER Interest expenses to directors (i) 785 —
Hfat - Note:

(i) HETHERANRZEENRE S (i) Sales to an associated company were made based on mutually
B B AR o agreed terms.

(ii) 361 Alden Inc. B%15:& 5 & KR (ii) 361 Alden Inc. is beneficially owned by Mr Lau Tak Wan and Ms
Brt(ARAEE)LRER - & Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky, directors of the Company. Operating lease
EHRERSHEH XRBEIRE ° rental expense is determined at rate mutually agreed between the

parties.

(iii) S EEZH BB R RS E A (iii) The interest expenses paid to the directors are calculated at 12%
HESETNERBEAFL12% per annum in accordance with the Loan agreements entered into
SFE AFENEFEREZE0E between the Group and respective directors. All the loans from
R e directors had been settled during the year.

REMEALHE (b) Balances with related parties

AF]
Company
—F—= —F——
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
e C NG Amounts due from subsidiaries 313,468 292,910
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38. FRAEALIXRF® 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) FTEEHEAS ZHEN (c) Key management compensation
£H
Group
—E2—= —=F—
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
T & K=k Salaries and allowances 7,655 7,738
TE4L Bonuses 1,258 820
BIKEKA — FEREHKETE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 348 328
9,261 8,886

aEMEEERAERAA 128
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